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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHRE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Birmingham
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
report the audited consolidated results of the Company together
with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
30 June 2014.

PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$253 million
for the year ended 30 June 2014, representing a decrease of 14%
comparing to the turnover of approximately HK$294 million in
the year ended 30 June 2013. The Group also recorded a loss of
approximately HK$156 million in the current year comparing to a
loss of approximately HK$121 million in the last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECT AND LOOKING
FORWARD

The Group is principally engaged in professional football
operation, and entertainment and media services.

2014 was a very challenging year for the Group. The Group
was subject to possibility of relegation to Football League One
from Football League Championship. Thanks for all our players,
fortunately, we maintain at Football League Championship in the
last season.

The Group will continue to manage the business prudently and
to ensure that the BCP Group (as defined below) will adhere to
the financial fair play rules which will be effective in the UK that
requires clubs to be self sufficient in the long term.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to my fellow directors, management, players, employees
for their contribution and dedication to the development of the
Group and deep thanks to our shareholders, football club fans,
other customers, suppliers and business partners for continuous
support.

Mr. Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$253 million,
representing a decrease of 14% compared to the consolidated
turnover of approximately HK$294 million in the year ended 30
June 2013. Such decrease was mainly due to the significant
dwindling of the revenue from Birmingham City Plc (“BCP”) due
to Birmingham City Football Club Plc (“BCFC”) being remained at
Football Championship League.

The Group’s net loss for the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$156 million (2013: net loss of approximately
HK$121 million). Such increase was mainly due to the decrease
in profit generated from sales of players’ registrations. The
expense for the year included the amortisation of intangible
assets in the United Kingdom of approximately HK$5 million
(2013: approximately HK$25 million), impairment loss on
intangible assets of Nil (2013: HK$4 million) and the staff costs
of approximately HK$274 million (2013: approximately HK$289
million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Company is engaged in investment holding. The principal
activities of its main subsidiaries are professional football
operation, entertainment and media services.

FOOTBALL OPERATION BUSINESS

BCP is a company domiciled in the United Kingdom, the principal
activities of BCP and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as
the “BCP Group”) was the operation of a professional football
club in the United Kingdom. The revenue streams of BCP Group
comprised of (i) gate receipts which consisted of season and
matchday tickets; (ii) broadcasting revenue, including distribution
from the Football Association and Championship broadcasting
agreements, cup competitions and revenue from the local media;
and (iii) commercial income which comprised of sponsorship
income, corporate hospitality, merchandising, conference and
banqueting and other sundry revenue.

BCP Group contributed a turnover of approximately HK$253
million to the Group’s turnover for the year ended 30 June 2014
(2013: HK$294 million). It contributed a loss before depreciation
for revalued property and amortisation of intangible assets of
approximately HK$109 million (2013: approximately HK$96 million)
and a loss of approximately HK$92 million to the Group’s for the
year (2013: net loss of approximately HK$42 million).

The Group will continue to manage the business prudently and
to ensure that the BCP Group will adhere to the financial fair play
rules which will be effective in the UK that requires clubs to be
self sufficient in the long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June
2014 (2013: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of reporting date.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of the Group
as at 30 June 2014 was 67.65% (2013: 50.66%) and the gearing
ratio (borrowings in long term portion to equity and non-current
liabilities) of the Group as at 30 June 2014 was 0.36% (2013:
54%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the Group as at
30 June 2014 was 68.77% (2013: 121.35%).

As at 30 June 2014, the cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$143 million, representing a
increase of 186% compared to the cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$50 million as at the last financial year end.

As at 30 June 2014, the borrowings (including current portion
and long term portion) of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$134 million (2013: HK$180 million), representing bank loans in
the United Kingdom and other borrowings in Hong Kong.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 40 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s subsidiaries mainly operates in the United Kingdom
and most of their transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Pound Sterling (“£”) and does not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rate. The Group does not have any derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risks.

PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSET

At 30 June 2014, the Group has the freehold land and buildings
with the carrying value of approximately £20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$269 million) for the bank borrowings and the
general banking facilities granted to the Group. The secured bank
borrowings of the Group of approximately HK$2 million are also
secured by unlimited multilateral guarantees given by certain of
its subsidiaries in the Group.

Save as the above, the Group did not have assets charged nor
pledged to secure any outstanding borrowing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

HUMAN RESOURCE

At 30 June 2014, the Group employs approximately 130 full
time employees and approximately 505 temporary staff in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom (2013: 180 full time employees
and 640 temporary staff). The Group remunerated its employees
mainly based on industrial practice, individual’s performance
and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration, discretionary
bonus may be granted to eligible employees with reference to
the Group’s performance as well as the individual performance.
In addition, share options may also be granted from time to time
in accordance with the term of the Company’s approved share
option scheme.

PLAYER TRANSFER COSTS

Under the terms of contracts with other football clubs in respect of
the player transfers, additional player transfer cost would become
payable if certain specific performance conditions are met. The
maximum amount not provided that could be payable in respect of
the transfers up to 30 June 2014 was approximately HK$3,800,000
(equivalent to £288,000). At the end of the reporting year and up
to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statement,
HK$5,266,000 (equivalent to £399,000) of these amounts has
become crystallise.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group had entered into the
following continuing connected transactions:

(1) a continuing connected transaction entered into on 22
September 2009, under which Asia Rays Limited (“Asia
Rays”) and Mr. Peter Pannu being an executive director
of the company, entered into a consultancy agreement
(the “2009 Consultancy Agreement”) pursuant to which
Asia Rays agreed to provide consultation services to
the Company with details disclosed in announcement of
the Company dated 23 April 2013, which is subject to
announcement and reporting requirements but is exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to
the 2009 Consultancy Agreement, Asia Rays is entitled
to the housing allowance and tax reimbursement. Due
to the payment of the housing allowance and the tax
reimbursement paid by the Company to Asia Rays, the
total payment made by the Company to Asia Rays pursuant
to the 2009 Consultancy Agreement has increased
substantially for the year ended 30 June 2014, thus
exceeding the annual cap for the consultancy fee payable
to Asia Rays under the 2009 Consultancy Agreement
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2014. The total
amount paid by the Company to Asia Rays under the 2009
Consultancy Agreement for the years ended 30 June 2014
was approximately HK$6.124 million, which exceeded the
relevant annual cap for the years ended 30 June 2014 by
approximately HK$1.324 million. Details of such exceed of
annual cap was stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 November 2014; and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(2) a continuing connected transaction entered into a lease
agreement on 5 March 2011, under which Asia Rays
leased an office premise in Hong Kong to Birmingham City
Football Club Plc (“BCFC"), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, for a term of 3 years commencing on 1 March
2011 and ending on 28 February 2014 for a monthly rental
of GBP5,000.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other continuing connected
transaction, which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions, which were entered into by the Group, are:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

— on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has received written annual confirmations of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent of the management of the Company and are
free from any relationship that could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgments for the financial year
ended 30 June 2014.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. Save as to the aggregate amount of
the continuing connected transactions of HK$6,124,000 during
the year ended 30 June 2014 set out in point number (1) above
has exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap value of
HK$4,800,000 as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 23 April 2013, the auditor believes that the Company is
complied with Rule 14A.56 during the year ended 30 June 2014.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGREBAERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Shing, an executive Director of the Company, has
been appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 4
February 2014.

Mr. Cheung, aged 61, is currently an executive director of China
Oil and Gas Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 603) from January 2006.
Mr. Cheung was an executive director and the deputy chairman
of Sino Union Energy Investment Group Limited (now known
as “Yanchang Petroleum International Limited”), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
346) from February 2005 to October 2010 and from January
2007 to September 2010 respectively. He worked in China
Petroleum Qilu Petrochemical Refinery, China Petroleum Shengli
Qilfield, China Petroleum Zhongyuan OQilfield and has been a
management economist of China National Petroleum Corporation
(*CNPC”) during the period between 1969 and 1993. He was the
chairman of each of Wah Chung (HK) Limited, Henan Shenghua
Petrochemical Co., Ltd. and Liaoning Xinmin Petroleum Company
Limited during the period between 1993 and 2004. He is also
currently a visiting lecturer of Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics, the vice president of Hong Kong General Association
of International Investment and the vice president of China
Petroleum Business Council.

Mr. Ma Shui Cheong, an executive Director of the Company, has
been appointed as the vice-chairman of the Board with effect from
4 February 2014.

Mr. Ma, aged 52. He is currently a first vice-chairman and an
executive director of Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited (stock
code: 8010) which is listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration in Management from The Open University
of Hong Kong. In the past working experience, he had substantial
senior management experience in managing various businesses.

Mr. Peter Pannu, aged 51, has obtained a LL. B degree and LL.
M degree majoring in corporate and financial law from London
University and a post graduate certificate law (P.C.L.L) from Hong
Kong City University. In addition, Mr. Pannu holds a Master of
Management & Business of Football from University of London.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREBAEBE

Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang, aged 49, has extensive experience in
law and litigation for both civil and criminal. He has obtained the
qualification of LL. B and is a member of Law Society of Hong
Kong. Mr. Cheung is a partner of K.B. Chau & Co.. He has been
employed as a court prosecutor in the department of justice of
HKSAR.

Mr. Chan Shun Wah, aged 51, has senior experience in the
management of project investments. He also has extensive
experience in engineering and multi-media. He has completed his
diploma at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chen Liang, aged 45, holds a Doctoral Degree in Coal,
Oil and Gas Geology and Exploration from China University of
Petroleum (Beijing), and worked for various oil companies and
research institutes in China and abroad. He was a vice president
of CITIC Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1205), during the period from September
2005 to November 2006 and the technical planning vice president
of CITIC Seram Energy Limited during the period from December
2006 to February 2010. During the period from April 2010 to July
2011, Mr. Chen was an executive director of Vitar International
Holdings Limited (now known as L’sea Resources International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 195). Since December 2011
to August 2013, Mr. Chen has been chief executive officer &
executive director of China Natural Investment Company Limited
(“China Natural”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8250). In August 2013,
Mr. Chen resigned as chief executive officer and remains as an
executive director of China Natural. Mr. Chen has accumulated
around 20 years of working experience in petroleum exploration
and development.

Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis, aged 38, holds a Master of Science
Degree in Investment and Finance awarded by Middlesex
University in London, UK in 2001, while he obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Computer Science from Aston University of Birmingham,
UK in 1999. Mr. Pavlakis has more than 10 years working
experience in Financial Industry in both Cities of London and
Hong Kong. Previously he worked in London for Bloomberg LP, a
well-known multi-national financial media organization, for more
than 3 years in the area of mutual funds and hedge funds analysis
and further business developing.
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Since January 2008 and until recently he has been working for
Kingsway Financial Group, a Hong Kong-based Investment Bank,
as an Equity Capital Markets Banker. During these years he has
been involved to a number of corporate actions and other raising
capital activities in Hong Kong Capital markets for Chinese and
International Companies; these activities were ranging from
coordinating and running IPOs to executing several Secondary
Offering deals such as Placements of Shares, Warrants, and
Convertible Bonds. He has been also organizing a number of
Roadshows for HK-listed Companies not only in Hong Kong and
China but also in the cities of Singapore, London, Frankfurt, Dubai,
Abu Dhabi and Moscow where a number of his international
institutional investors are located.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson, aged 36, has substantial experience
in auditing and financial accounting experiences. He is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Simon Fraser
University and a Diploma in Financial Management from British
Columbia Institution of Technology.

On 1 August 2008, Mr. Wong was appointed as executive director
of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (formerly “iMerchants
Limited”) (as “Chinese Energy”’) whose shares are listed and
traded on the Growth Enterprise Market of Hong Kong. On 4
February 2013, Mr. Wong has resigned as executive director from
Chinese Energy.

Mr. Gao Shi Kui, aged 63, has over 40 years’ experience in the
areas of exploration, development, production and sales of crude
oil and has held various senior positions in companies engaged in
these fields such as FEAHENFEMAZAFR AR (China Petroleum
Exploration Development Company Limited, being its unofficial
English translation) and R B&F A mm/ERIBAER AT (China
Ocean Petroleum South East Company Limited, being its unofficial
English translation). He was the managing director of China
Everbright Petroleum (International) Limited and China Everbright
Petroleum Exploration & Investment Co., Ltd. during November
1998 to December 2007. Mr. Gao was also one of the vice
chairman of China Guangdong Petroleum Society and the deputy
chairman of China Chamber of Commerce for Petroleum Industry.
From 2008 to 2011, he acted as the president of Sysmoto Group
Limited and concurrently held the position of chief executive
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officer of Beijing Sysmoto Joyful Multimedia Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Sysmoto”), a subsidiary of Sysmoto Group Limited. He was an
non-executive director of China Netcom Technology Holdings
Limited, a company listed in the Growth Enterprises Market of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8071), during November 2012 to
June 2013.

Mr. Liu Enxue, aged 63, is a holder of university degree and
senior engineer qualification (entitled to special government
allowance), and was Deputy to the Ninth and Tenth Session of the
National People’s Congress. Mr. Liu has consecutively served as
the section chief, secretary to the Communist Party Committee,
branch manager of Jianghan OQilfield, and the president of
Jianghan Petroleum Broach Company Limited. He has acted as
the section chief and branch manager of Zhongyuan Qilfield, as
well as the president, secretary of the Communist Party Committee
and minister of the coordinating committee of Zhongyuan Qil and
Gas Company Limited, Mr. Liu was the head of the preparatory
team and secretary of the Communist Party Committee of the
natural gas branch company of China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation since June 2004, and served as the chairman of the
supervisory committee of Sinopec Asset Company.

Mr. Li Hanguo, aged 58, holds a Master Degree of Accounting.
Mr. Li is the Director of the Securities and Futures Research
Centre, Professor of finance and a postgraduate tutor at Jiangxi
University of Finance (JUFE). He used to work as the vice
Director of Accounting college and Director of the Securities and
Futures Research Center at JUFE, and was a President of Jiangxi
Rich Futures Ltd., Executive Vice President of Minfa Securities
Ltd., President of China Sifang Holding Ltd., and the Chairman
of Wanlian Securities Ltd. He is a holder of certified public
accountant, futures and securities certifications and independent
director qualification of Listing Company.

Mr. Li is an independent director of Heng Gagaoxin Co., Ltd.,
Sanchuan Shuibiao Co., Ltd., Xinhui Meida Nylon Co., Ltd., Jiangxi
Jing’an Gaoke Co” Ltd. Mr. Li is also working as the counsellor
of the People’s Government of Nanchang City and a member of
Financial Committee at Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Wai Kwok, Company Secretary, holds a Master Degree
of Business Law from Monash University, Master Degree of
Business Administration from Deakin University, Master Degree
of Professional Accounting from Monash University and Bachelor
Degree of Science from The University of New South Wales. Mr.
Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, initial public offerings,
investors relationship and auditing, from international investment
banks, multinational corporations and international accounting
firms.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board believes that good corporate governance is crucial
to improve the efficiency and performance of the Group and to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders.

The Board has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with code provisions of
the CG Code for the period from 1 July 2013 up to 30 June 2014,
except for the following deviation:

(a) Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. The Company deviates from the above
code provision as all independent non-executive Directors
(*INEDs”) are not appointed for specific terms. According
to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association,
however, and INEDs are subject to retirement and re-
election. The reason for the deviation is that the Company
believes that the Directors ought to be committed to
representing the long term interest of the Company’s
shareholders.

(b) Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors shall attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Gao Shi Kui, Mr. Liu Enxue and Mr. Li
Hanguo, the independent non-executive Directors, did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
10 January 2014 by the reason of their engagement in their
own official business.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of
corporate governance and has performed and reviewed
in a timely manner the corporate governance functions
as required under the CG Code. The Board continues to
monitor and review the Company’s corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the full set of Model Code set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of the conduct
for securities transactions by directors (the “Model Code”). The
prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements
in the Model Code apply to specified individuals including the
Group’s senior management and also persons who are privy to
price sensitive information of the Group. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, the Board confirms that the directors
of the Company have complied with the Model Code regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the year and up to the
date of publication of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company has a separate chairman and chief executive
officer. The two positions are assumed by different persons,
in order to ensure that their independence, accountability and
power are clear. Mr. Cheung Shing, the chairman of the Board,
is responsible for the operation of the Board and the formulation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, Mr. Peter Pannu, the
chief executive officer and managing director, with the assistance
of other members of the Board and senior management, is
responsible for the management of the Company’s business,
the implementation of significant policies, the daily operational
decisions as well as the coordination of the overall.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
a total of eleven members including seven executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors.
Members of the Board have different professional and
relevant industry experiences and background so as
to bring in valuable contributions and advices for the
development of the Group’s business. Four out of eleven
of the Board is independent non-executive directors and
one of them is qualified accountant in the United States of
America.

As required under Rule 3.10A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, an issuer must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board. Rule 3.10A is complied.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of their
independence to the Group. The Group considered
that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. The names of the directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 10 to 11 of
this Annual Report.

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis and will
meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a
particular matter is required. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during the
financial year and their individual attendance of are set out
below:

EESp)

(b)
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Board
Name of Directors EEpR EEg
Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. Cheung Shing (Chairman) REK A (EE)

(redesignated on 4 February 2014) (R=F—py&E = 74 HEHFF) 13/18
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (Vice Chairman) SmEEE(FFE)

(redesignated on 4 February 2014) (R=—ZF—pgF = 79 HERF) 17/18
Mr. Peter Pannu (Chief Executive Officer and Peter Pannu 5t & (7T A8 77 & FATACHE )

Managing Director) 14/18
Mr. Chan Shun Wah BRI 2E 5 A= 15/18
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang RERESE 11/18
Mr. Chen Liang BREE S 12/18
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis Panagiotis Pavlakis 5t 4

(appointed on 17 December 2013) (R=ZF—=FF A+ +HEZ(F) 11/14
Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson BRMEE

(resigned on 4 February 2014) (R=F—pyF = 7/ HFHE) 5/5
Mr. Charlie Penn B LA

(resigned on 5 February 2014) (R=ZF—PyE= 7 AFHE) 1/5
Independent non-executive Directors: BAFHTES:

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson ERBEAE 3/18
Mr. Gao Shi Kui SR E 2/18
Mr. Liu Enxue RlRENE

(appointed on 17 December 2013) (R=ZF—=FF A+ +HEZ(F) 2/15
Mr. Li Hanguo PERSLE

(appointed on 17 December 2013) (RZF—=FF—H1+HEZF) 0/15
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(d) The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company, oversee the Group’s businesses and
evaluate the performance of the Group. The Board also
focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

(e) The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to Executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. When
the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to Management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the Management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
Management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
TRAINING

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year ended
30 June 2014, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a Nomination Committee which comprises
four independent non-executive directors and one executive
director, Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson, Mr. Gao Shi Kui, Mr.
Liu Enxue (appointed on 17 December 2013), Mr. Li Hanguo
(appointed on 17 December 2013), and Mr. Chan Shun Wah up
to the date of this report. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee have been reviewed with reference to the
Code.

The duties, roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
as follows:

1. to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, experience, skills,
knowledge, independence and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations to
the Board on any proposed changes to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify and nominate individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying
suitable individuals, the Nomination Committee shall
consider individuals on merit against the objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence
and make disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report of the Company;

4. to regularly review the time required for a director to
perform his responsibilities;

58 to review the balance between executive and non-executive
directors and the blend of skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity on the Board;

6. to review the leadership and succession needs of the
organisation with a view to ensuring the long term success
of the Group;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

7. to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of its
review results in the corporate governance report annually;

8. to ensure that all Directors offer themselves for re-election
every three years by shareholders;

9. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment or re-designation of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
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knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future; A
Number of meetings
attended in the financial
year ended 30 June 2014
Name of members of BE-—Z—WFEXA=t+HL
Nomination Committee REZESEHRENSE MRFEHE2ERRE
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson EmREESTE 0/0
Mr. Gao Shi Kui = B A 0/0
Mr. Liu Enxue 2R Bk E
(appointed on 17 December 2013) (RZZT—=F+-A++tHEZHT) 0/0
Mr. Li Hanguo R EE
(appointed on 17 December 2013) (R=Z2—=F+=-A+tHEZE) 0/0
Mr. Chan Shun Wah PR B 2E 5 A 0/0

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a Remuneration Committee which
comprises four independent non-executive directors namely Mr.
Wong Ka Chun, Carson, Mr. Gao Shi Kui, Mr. Liu Enxue (appointed
on 17 December 2013) and Mr. Li Hanguo (appointed on 17
December 2013) and one executive director, namely Mr. Chan
Shun Wah. Up to the date of this report, Mr. Wong Ka Chun,
Carson is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

FMEES
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BlREsE(W_T—=F+-"A++A%
ZRIRFEREER_ZE—=F+=A
TERAEZRE)R—BATES - BIRIEE
Tk - BEAREAY  EREEE AT
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KB P KA ERE °
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Board about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

Emolument Policy

The directors are paid fees in line with market practice. The Group
adopted the following main principles in determining the directors’
remuneration:

— No individual should determine his own remuneration;

— Remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies
with who the Group competes for human resources;

— Remuneration should reflect performance.
In addition to the basic salaries, a share option scheme is adopted
for rewarding good performers as well as retaining talented staff

for the continual operation and development of the Group.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of

FMEES®)

HWES e —RE AR FIMBEREER
ETHTESRERERAL Y EEFHHG
BREMEAEEMSEETEE - FWHE
EeAREUTFHREREERFWEB
RETHEEGZER

A
EEEINZHRENATHER - AEEK
MATETEEME 2T ERA

— EAENALFAREERS 2ME

— HBERARELAEEFDANERZ

RERA

—  MERERBRRR -

BEAFEI - AR ATRABBRE S
RAEEHESERBEEDESETR
BBETHME -

BB ZEFEEHIIMT

Number of meetings
attended in the financial
year ended 30 June 2014
E-E-MEXRA=THL

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson
Mr. Gao Shi Kui
Mr. Liu Enxue

(appointed on 17 December 2013)
Mr. Li Hanguo

(appointed on 17 December 2013)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah

FHESEREHE MHEEHEZERAIH
BRI E 2/2
=t 2 2/2
2B &kt

(R—Z—=F+-A++tBHEEE) 2/2
FERLE

(R=—Z—=%+_F++tAEXT) 2/2
PR IIBZE 55 &= 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson, Mr. Gao
Shi Kui, Mr. Liu Enxue (appointed on 17 December 2013) and
Mr. Li Hanguo (appointed on 17 December 2013).

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board;

— To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors;

— To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system,
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

internal control

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30
June 2014 including the review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, and the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or

dismissal of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 30 June 2014
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of

REBETIIRIA

— EHVBBRREERES UIRE2RES
GZAERAEBMERE - AR
HOMNERBENRH 2 EREAHKIES
A

— 2EREEMPETZIE - EBe Rk
5 RS SR AR AT BRSNS A BB 2 B MR
WL REE - BEHE K B S NS AR 2R A )
BEgRNEE

—  BREADFMHERBHE - NBED
B AR B SIS KA 2 R
St R AL o

BERZEEREBE_T—NFANA=THIE
FEABTMREH EII(’E@%%B@EM%

EERKE -
HNEERZ ERET -

MR R A RIEF A RERE

FRIEE - RHE - BHR SRR IS SIS A B T
O OEFRHEEZZBEGUERYENL -

ERZEQCENARRBE_T—EFX
A=TRIFEZ2FEE -

BEXREBZERFEEHFIIMT

Number of meetings
attended in the financial
year ended 30 June 2014

BE-Z—HNEXA=t+HL

Audit Committee EREEEHNEHSE HMHREFELEZERRE
Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson BRELE 2/2
Mr. Gao Shi Kui =R A 1/2
Mr. Liu Enxue SR ERST A

(appointed on 17 December 2013) (RZZE—=F+=-A+tHEEE) 1/1
Mr. Li Hanguo FEELE

(appointed on 17 December 2013) (R=—TB—=F+"FA++tBEZHE) 0/1
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control and risk management of the
Group. The Group’s internal control system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, is designed to
help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The system
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operation systems and achievement of
the Group’s objectives. The Board throughout the Group maintains
and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information to
the Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position
and prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable
the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report) for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. The Board was aware material uncertainties
from the unavailability of future funding available would raise
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and the Board has prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The responsibility of the external auditor
is to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board and
to report their opinion to the shareholders of the Company. A
statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration, paid/payable to the Company’s
external auditor’'s, JH CPA Alliance Limited (“JH”) and Edwards
Chartered Accountants (“Edwards”), the component auditors for
Birmingham City Plc, and Birmingham City Football Club Plc,
subsidiaries of the Company, respectively, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June 2014
are set out as follows which has been reviewed and approved by
the Audit Committee based on the scopes of their works.

S S A% R B B &

RAFEEAR  ARREREBEE_FT—HFER
R=+HILFE 2 %2R & IEZ RS M
BN BN B E R BT
AR A A% ]) REdwards Chartered
Accountants ([Edwards]| @+ B2 2A 7K &
7~ A)Birmingham City Plc & Birmingham
City Football Club Plc % Bll 2 485X 2512 % 8X
M zMeEREZZESRETIES@EER
R AL - WESIAT

Approximately fees paid/payable to

B ENZBOER
Services rendered JH Total
for the Group AR B iR 2 RS B Edwards st
Audit services ZE R 1,100,000 591,000 1,691,000
Non-audit services IERZBARTS 500,000 — 500,000
1,600,000 591,000 2,191,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Hiu Tung was resigned as the company secretary of the
Company on 23 April 2014.

Mr. Wong Wai Kwok (“Mr. Wong”) was appointed as the Company
secretory of the Company on 24 April 2014. According to the
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Wong has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial year
ended 30 June 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

REAWE
ABRAER =T —MEmA =+ = ARE
AREZ REAWE -

FHEEAE(EREDR-_FT-—OFMOA
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Any one or more members holding at the date of the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s principal office as set out
in the manner below, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal
place of business at Units 1901 & 1910, 19/F., Harbour Centre,
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and such may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the company secretary of the
Company will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
to all registered members. On the contrary, if the request has
been verified is not in order, the shareholders will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened
as requested. If within twenty one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisition(s), may convene a meeting in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed by the Company to the requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10
business days) if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of
the Company;

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10
business days) if calling for an annual general meeting or the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in EGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or email to info
@bihl.com.hk for the attention of the company secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law (2013 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements
and procedures are set out above. Pursuant to Article 88 of
the Company’s Articles of Association, no person, other than a
director retiring at a meeting, shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for appointment as a director
at any general meeting unless there shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office notice in writing
signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for election
as a director and also notice in writing signed by that person
of his willingness to be elected as a director. Unless otherwise
determined by the directors and notified by the Company to the
shareholders, the period for lodgment of said notices shall be a
seven day period commencing on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting for such election of director(s)
and ending on the date falling seven days after the dispatch of the
said notice of the general meeting. The written notice must state
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars
and the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
birminghamint/index.htm.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents
except an increase in authorized share capital of the Company
from HK$100,000,000 to HK$500,000,000 by creation of
40,000,000,000 new ordinary shares, at a nominal or par value
of HK$0.01 each by amending clause 8 of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company according to the ordinary resolution
of shareholders passed on 5 February 2014. Upon the increase
is anthorized share capital of the Company, the total authorized
share capital of the Company has now be HK$500,000,000
divided into 50,000,000,000 ordinary shares at a nominal or par
value of HK$0.01 each.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to submit
their report together with the audited financial statements of
Birmingham International Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred
as to the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred as to the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are engaged in (i)
professional football operation; (ii) entertainment and media
services and (iii) investment holding. The activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 36.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 30 June
2014 are set out in the consolidated and Company’s statement of
financial position on pages 37 to 39 respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
nor transfer of any amount to reserves in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to the results
by principal activities for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set out
in Notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year ended are set out in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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RESERVES (EA]

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the ZAEBRAATNFRAZ FEEIHFIFHD
Company during the year ended are set out in the consolidated 540 B 7 &G & R EBIR RS M BREM
statement of changes in equity on page 40 and Note 41 to the 741 -

consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFEMBHRE
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ANEEBEREMBEE 7 £EREERE
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 140. EMEZENRFE 1408 ©
DIRECTORS ==
The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to AR BHBEAREEARBEHE - XA 7
the date of this report were: ZEEWNT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheung Shing (Chairman) R SEE(EE)
(redesignated on 4 February 2014) (R=—ZF—pyF = 79 HGET)
Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (Vice Chairman) BmEkE(FFE)

(redesignated on 4 February 2014)
Mr. Peter Pannu (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Shun Wah
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang
Mr. Chen Liang
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis
(appointed on 17 December 2013)
Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson (resigned on 4 February 2014)
Mr. Charlie Penn (resigned on 5 February 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson

Mr. Gao Shi Kui

Mr. Liu Enxue (appointed on 17 December 2013)

Mr. Li Hanguo (appointed on 17 December 2013)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Peter Pannu, Mr. Chan Shun Wah, Mr.
Cheung Kwai Nang and Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson, shall retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting (*“AGM”)
and Mr. Peter Pannu, Mr. Chan Shun Wah, Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang
and Mr. Wong Ka Chun, Carson shall be eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 8 to 11 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 30 June 2014, Asia Rays Limited
(*Asia Rays”), a company being directly and wholly owned by
Mr. Peter Pannu, an executive director, chief executive officer and
managing director of the Company, provided consultancy services
to the Group amounting to approximately HK$6,124,000 (2013:
HK$5,920,000) based on the contractual terms of the agreement.

On 5 March 2011, Birmingham City Football Club Plc (“BCFC”), an
indirectly 96.64% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a Rental and Management Agreement (the “Rental Agreement”)
with Asia Rays for a period of 3 years commencing from 1
March 2011 to 28 February 2014 at monthly rental of GBP5,000.
Approximately HK$441,000 (2013: HK$730,000) has been paid
to Asia Rays during the financial year. The Rental Agreement is
expired on 28 February 2014 and has not been renewed.

During the year, Splux Company Limited (“Splux”), a private
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, being
directly and wholly owned by Mr. Ma Shui Cheong (“Mr. Ma”") who
is an executive director of the Company, entered into a finder’s
agreement with the Company. Pursuant to the finder’'s agreement,
the Company pays commission to Splux for the efforts of Mr. Ma
to facilitate and secure the provision of a loan agreement made
between U-Continent Holdings Limited and the Company for the
loan to the Company. Approximately HK$1,900,000 has been paid
during the financial year.
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RBEFN W - NARIGE EER#E R
U-Continent Holdings Limited 827482 &5k
REMEEEI L 2B EHZE 2 IGEXFIEZS
HASplux A& - RAFREER - B
fF491,900,000 7T °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
(Continued)

Save as the above, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2014, the following parties (not being Directors or chief
executive of the Company disclosed under the section “Directors’
Interests in Securities”) had an interest in 5% or more of the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

EECaER®)

B Ll SN - AR B S AR BT B A L
AR EREFREREHEDALER - AR
REFHEAREREEAREMEARE
EBBFRERZEL -

FERR

R-F-MEAAZTE  REESREE
60155 336 (6 A A FA T R 17 2 B
Frinsk  THIAT(EEZ BEER 5
FRELEEAADALBIHATRI)
WA B 2 B A5 B 4B BB A o0 i 5% 5 bA
S -

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
issued ordinary issued
shares Long/Short share capital
interested  position RN
Name of substantial shareholder #EE#E 2  in shares Notes EETRAE
FTERRER ERTZERBE ROZE KA Mt ZBHA B
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson 725,353,866 Long Position & & 1 13.23%
R M
Great Luck Management Limited 539,901,066  Long Position & 1 9.85%
BHEEERAT
Yang Yue Zhou #5# M 262,093,333  Long Position #¥& 2 4.78%
U-Continent Holdings Limited 262,093,333  Long Position & 2 4.78%
Liu Yuanjiu 2z E 326,646,000 Long Position & 5.96%
Luo Chao Kui Z&#%% 391,600,000 Long Position & 7.14%
Lyu Yubo mRE 402,206,000 Long Position I¥& 7.34%
Liu Xingcheng 212X 453,237,000  Long Position & 8.27%
Notes: Mt -
1. Great Luck Management Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung 1. BHEBEEARATBRGRBMALEBEE]D

Ka Sing, Carson (“Mr. Yeung”). Hence, Mr. Yeung is deemed to
be interested in 539,901,066 ordinary shares of the Company held
through Great Luck Management Limited.

2. U-Continent Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Yue
Zhou (“Mr. Yang”). Hence, Mr. Yang is deemed to be interested
in 262,093,333 ordinary shares of the Company held through
U-Continent Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, no person had
registered an interest and short positions in the share capital of
the Company that was required to be recorded under Section 336
of the SFO.

2EWA - At - BEERRARBIBEBRHE
BIEAMR A AEAE 2 539,901,066 % AR A
TR RS s o

2. U-Continent Holdings Limited g5 5t
E(HBEMNEEDZERSE - Bt - Bl
MNP A AR AR B 38 U-Continent Holdings
Limited#§ & 2 262,093,333 Ik A" 12 7] & i@
MR B o

b EXAREESN R-E-mEAAST
B BEA LB ERRAR ARAHEAR
5 5 TR B 5 1 D 25 336 1/ T s8R 2 ez
Roph -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 30 June 2014, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of
the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 30 June 2014, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were as follows:

BE HEIELAQRAFES

REBE-_Z-—WFRAA=THILFE £
AREEMHEARMRERE  BEEXHE
ARRRER ETES

EEvRSER
RZZE—NFEARA=TH  BREBZIHFEHE
1'*1%((%%%&3)?151 Bl 1) 8352 & 1R & A&

AIATREZELMATE S - SIRBIZAE
TE'JZIKA AN R FEEZ R REER
RABEEITIABRARR A A AT Bk
FE(EEREFRPERGIEXVE) 2 &
7~ HEARG REFZERNT

(i) Shares (i) idvi)
Percentage
Number of of the
issued issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares held Company
Name of directors Nature of interest PSR AR B E BT
BEEpE EEME EERHE BRAE DL
Mr. Peter Pannu Personal interest 1,500,000 (L) 0.029%
Peter Pannu %4 AR
Mr. Cheung Kwai Nang Personal interest 250,000 (L) 0.00%
RERLE (BN
Mr. Panagiotis Pavlakis Personal interest 380,000 (L) 0.01%
Panagiotis Pavlakis %4 B ARz
The letter “L” denotes a long position in shares of the Company. [LIRKARATIBRMD Z2HE °
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING EENS TR S

BUSINESS

During the year and up to date of this report, no director of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries is considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those business of which
the directors were appointed as directors to represent the interest
of the Company and/or the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

REARBEARRERBH - ARRHEAEM

MBARCcEEHMERRAEA(RELT

RADEAREEXEBEXIHEBRBEFX

AEBRBFIRGTRE D FEFH

%E%%% CURRARE R LA EEE
M2z ZRBRIRRIN o

BrBERE
ARAZABERABAAASHES(KAT
%ﬁ&I%EZﬁ%%EDHHﬁﬁﬁWE
IR QAR IR B A R R 2 B 3
kﬁZ@%%ﬁ%ﬁm°
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate. None of the directors, or their spouses
or their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the shares of the Company, or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Under the new share option schemes adopted by the Company
on 30 July 2007, the board of directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
share in the Company. The Company did not grant options for the
financial year under the share option schemes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to
24 of this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of
conduct regarding securities transaction by the Directors of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed following specific enquiry
by the Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30
June 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors of the Company has reviewed with the management in
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including review of the audited financial information and
financial report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

EERBEROIES 2ER

BT X BRmER & rREES - NAF -
H PR e X B) gl H AR AT Y /a8 & B AL AT B
MY ESEEALH BEARBZESHE
BARR R HAEATEAMEE Z B HEST
BB -  EFREEF2RBIARR T\
ZFRRFEARBRERBARRRMND ZE
IR BT A RERER

BREE
REARTANR_ZZLFLA=THERAZ
MBRERTE > ARREFSINBERAE
RSRERDERE  URBARRRND -
RAMBEE - AR B W ERIZ B AR S
R ERE -

TEER
ARBZEEERRBRERIRAFERE
13224 A ¥ERREN ©

ESETRESRBEZEETR

RRABERA LR BN+ PrEz EE
TABRETESFRHNFRESTR([REST
1)) EREFMARRESETESRRD
ZIRSTRl e RARRELREEMR - &2
BEFHOHERBRENBE_FT—HFAA
=tHALEFEA-BETEREETAMEZR

ARk -

BEREES

ERZEEMANRMEBEILIERNTESMA
B HDREEEENAREMRMN 2GS
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the reappointment of JH CPA Alliance Limited
as auditors of the Company will be proposed in the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2014

ABFREZT M
REARRTRMNEGE LR RHARTE
FRARE BBHA - ARTSEI TR
AT 2 ARISRE -

BB
—REBBEEEESTMEEMERAAR
AR BZEED 2 RE R BN AR B EEBR
BERELREZR -
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T
R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

JH CPA Alliance Limited
B2 e ERHAA R

Certified Public Accountants

A K v RE TS

B K S k= R 8H801-802AF

Room 801-802A, 8/F, Tower 2, South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
& #F E-mail: info@jhcpa.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Birmingham International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 36 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 30 June
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those

HARHRRERERIBDERE
(RAEASHBZMELZFRAA])

ELRZEERINENFE I E 139 AARY
RIREBEARAR(TEAR ) REWNE QT
(MEAIERE ] ZHRAMBERE - WK
BRBEN-_ZE-—HOFEA=1TRAZEAR
AEFBRRARBHEZRILFEZHGAE
s R EMEERER  SEEREHR RS
BRENER  ARTBEFEHER R EAMM
ALRRRE -

EERGREMBRRAEREZ
BfE
BAREFARRREEBEHL®HEIS
2 BB R R RE B DA BT
ERRURARN AT 2R AHEEE
UEEEERAREEAUBRRARAVE
2 MEMELE - AER MR TEERR
A RIS B BRI -

RBE 2 BE

EECEARRBESZER  BEAME
BREXBR - AWER ETHE Btz
SIARERNEEMBEDN - BEETERARE
ZABTAEMEMALE EAEEE - &
SERBEESHMAGEMZEBRRE
APETTERZ - R SRRAEEFETERER

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BT RS

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

However, because of the matters described in the basis for

disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not able to obtain

sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an

audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1.
i)

i)

LIMITATION OF SCOPE

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Our reports on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the years ended 30 June 2011, 2012 and 2013
were qualified in view of the limitations on the scope on the
royalty fee income and amounts due to former directors
of approximately HK$5,198,000 due to Hui Ho Luek, Vico.
With regard to the potential understatement of royalty
feeincome for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012, the
Group, as at the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, was still in the process of negotiating
the royalty fee income with the former sponsor for
settlement.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the opening
balances as at 1 July 2011, 1 July 2012 and 1 July 2013
may affect the loss, cash flows and related disclosures in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2014. In addition, the comparative
figures in respect of the net liabilities of the Group as at
30 June 2013, and the loss and cash flows and related
disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 may not be
comparable with the figures for the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO FORMER DIRECTORS

At 30 June 2014, included in the amounts due to former
directors is an amount of approximately HK$5,198,000 due
to Hui Ho Luek, Vico. We were unable to obtain sufficient
information to verify the amount and repayment terms
of this amount. There were no other satisfactory audit
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procedures including direct confirmation that we could
perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether this amount was
fairly stated in the statements of financial position as at 30
June 2014.

Any adjustments found to be necessary in respect of the
above would have a significant consequential effect on the
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2014, and the
loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended
and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO THE
GOING CONCERN BASIS

As explained in Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group incurred a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$153,114,000
for the year ended 30 June 2014 and had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$96,855,000 as at 30 June
2014. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the validity
of which is dependent upon future funding available.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from the unavailability of
future funding. We consider that appropriate disclosures
have been made. However, the uncertainty surrounding the
outcome of future funding available raises significant doubt
as to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may be necessary should the future
funding be unavailable. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning this situation, but we consider that
this fundamental uncertainty relating to whether the going
concern basis is appropriate is so extreme that we have
disclaimed our opinion.

(BHEEERER) » MEBZEMILHR
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs concerning the going
concern basis and limitation of audit scope as stated above, we
do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
and, of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at
30 June 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

JH CPA Alliance Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fung Kwok Leung

Practising Certificate Number: P2357

Hong Kong
30 September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeREREM2ERER

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BEZE—F—WENA=THIEFE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FET
Turnover = 11 253,227 294,497
Operating expenses KBRS (362,107) (390,915)
Loss from operations before amortisations K5t i ~ 48 & E5 18 (108,880) (96,418)
Other income H A 12 8,585 7,403
Gain on settlement of borrowings BIEBEZWE 37 33,275 —
Profit on sales of players’ registrations HE Bk 8 1l 2 % A 42,758 77,125
Impairment loss on intangible assets mIVEEZREEBE 22 — (3,602)
Impairment loss on amounts due from  FEUKE:E R F3KI8 2 R EEE
related companies 28 — (1,089)
Amortisation of intangible assets mI AR 22 (4,786) (24,669)
Administrative and other expenses TE R E MR (87,918) (58,861)
Finance costs BAFS R AR 13 (18,267) (25,421)
Loss before taxation bR R ETE 14 (135,233) (125,532)
Income tax (expense) credit Frsfi () &R 15 (21,032) 4,944
Loss for the year REEFEE (156,265) (120,588)
Other Comprehensive expense Hib 2 MBI
Items that may be classified R B HEBm s B -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEFINGB AR M ERRESE
translation of financial statements of ZIEH =58
overseas subsidiaries (1,836) (815)
Total comprehensive expenses for the — AF[E2ERH L A
year (158,101) (120,903)
Loss for the year attributable to: AR S IEREAFEEE :
Owners of the Company RARER A (153,114) (118,760)
Non-controlling interests FEE I M 2 (3,151) (1,828)
(156,265) (120,588)
Total comprehensive expenses ATEBEEGEERZERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARER A (154,890) (119,064)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR i 2 (3,211) (1,839)
(158,101) (120,903)
Loss per share B EE 18
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EAREE B (3.40) (3.05)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& B R R

At 30 June 2014
R-F—MEAA=+H

Notes
Hat
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE RFE 21
Intangible assets EmRAE 22
Goodwill EES 23
Deposits, prepayments and other Be  EARER
receivables i UK IE 27
Current assets REEE
Inventories EAss 25
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 26
Deposits, prepayments and other B - EARIEREAER
receivables FRIE 27
Amounts due from related companies FEUR B E A R 5RIE 28
Cash held at non-bank financial RIERITERMEMFR S
institutions 29
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRE S 30
Current liabilities REIAE
Transfer fee payables ENEe s 31
Trade payables FETE SRR 32
Accruals and other payables FERT I K H A A5 5RIE 33
Deferred capital grants TR & AR 34
Amounts due to former directors FERT AT E F5KIE 35
Deferred income EEWA 36
Borrowings BE 37
Amounts due to directors ENEERIE 38
Income tax payable FERT TSR
Net current liabilities RBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERREBARE

2013

HK$'000
FET

264,119
37,896

83

302,098

2,225
93,687

15,705
1,249

1
49,996

162,863

8,428
28,705
75,324
672
5,198
23,770
178,442
544
418

321,501

(158,638)

143,460

3R Annual Report 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R &

At 30 June 2014

N — = ppE ;
RZF—WFNHA=1TH

2014 2013
—E2-ImF —E=fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FAET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Transfer fee payables ENEe s 31 704 —
Accruals and other payables FEFTRIE K H A FE 5 5/ I8 &3 521 —
Deferred capital grants IR B B 34 22,298 20,600
Borrowings BE 37 834 2,025
Amounts due to directors FEREEFIA 38 = 182,808
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEE & 39 39,994 37,296
64,351 242,729
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES) EE(BRE)FE 165,180 (99,269)
Capital and reserves EXRRFEE
Share capital %N 40 54,811 38,878
Reserves & 41 106,637 (138,407)
Equity attributable to owners of the RNARER AELER
Company 161,448 (99,529)
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 3,732 260
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE(ERBA)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) 165,180 (99,269)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 139 were $36EFF 1308 Y GAMKBERELEESRN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

September 2014, and signed on its behalf by:

MR. CHEUNG SHING

RAR
Director

BF

“E-NFARA=TEIERIRETE I
B TIEEREREE

MR. MA SHUI CHEONG
BWERE

Director

BF
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 AR 0 3R

At 30 June 2014

o

R-ZF—WFNHA=1H

2014 2013
—Z—MmFE —T—=F
Notes HK$°’000 HK$'000
HtaF FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE M&iE 21 2,134 722
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZRE 24 = ==
2,134 722
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other Re - EAZIEREA
receivables JE W ke 27 5,635 681
Amounts due from subsidiaries i CNEPNEI B 24 89,796 45,376
Amounts due from related companies FEUW A E A RIFRIE 28 320 320
Cash held at non-bank financial RIERITE BHAE
institutions Fr#siR & 29 1 1
Bank balances and cash IRITEREIAE S 30 34,502 3,868
130,254 50,246
Current liabilities nBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIE K H Ath B 3R 18 33 57,683 47,951
Amounts due to subsidiaries N EPNGI ] 24 6,820 6,812
Amounts due to former directors S RIEEFTE 35 10,780 5,198
Borrowings B8 37 43,885 97,418
Amounts due to directors ENEZESRIA 38 — 544
119,168 157,923
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEERE 11,086 (107,677)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREBARS 13,220 (106,955)
Non-current liability FREEE
Amounts due to directors ENEERIE 38 — 5,582
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES) 8&FE 13,220 (112,537)
Capital and reserves BEAXR B
Share capital %N 40 54,811 38,878
Reserves 1 41 (41,591) (151,415)
TOTAL EQUITY BB (EREAM)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) 13,220 (112,537)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 139 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
September 2014, and signed on its behalf by:

FBEINELHBERERKEESTSRNZ
—UENA=+BHERTETEL A T
BERRES

Mr. Cheung Shing Mr. Ma Shui Cheong

RAK L& BB xE
Director Director
BF BF

£ # Annual Report 2014



40

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERBEHR

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLRERARL
Share Convertible Non-
Share Share option Capital ~ Translation bonds  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TRRES
B REEE ERERE  SABE  AHEE BE  ZitER & FERER &5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
578 FET TET TEL FET 7ET TEL FET FET TET
(Note 41(a) ~ (Note 41(a))  (Note 41(a) ~ (Note 41(a)) ~ (Note 41(a))
W)  (Bane)  WEae)  (Biae)  hEae)
A1 July 2012 W-E-£+A-8 B8 1132593 1,497 6510 (12714) — (1,147.229) 1953 2,099 21634
Total comprehensive RERRERNER
expenses for the year - - - - (304) - (118,760)  (119,064) (1,839) (120,903
Transfer to reserve for value ~ EEZEANEREEE
of share options lapsed fe - - (1497) - - 1497 - - -
At 30 June 2013 RZT-=%7A=1A 38878 113259 = 6,510 (13,018) - (126449) (99,529) 260 (99,269)
Total comprehensive RERRERREE
expenses for the year - - - - (1,776) - (153,114)  (154,890) (3211)  (158,101)
Loss on deed of novation ~ EEEEZEZER
(Note) 2 = = = = = = (6,683) (6,683) 6,683 .
Issue of convertible bonds ~~ EfTTT R ES - - - - — 360500 — 360500 — 360500
Issue of shares upon; RN TEEEARG :
— placement of shares —EERR 12,600 49,450 - - - - - 62,050 = 62,050
— conversion of convertible  — BT AR(ESR
bonds 3,333 6,667 - - - (10,000) - - - -
At 30 June 2014 RZT-ME A=A 54811 1,188,710 - 6,510 (14,794) 350500 (1,424,289) 161,448 3,732 165,180
Note: Bt -

The amount represents a loss incurred due to the Company assumed the
debt attributable to the non-controlling interest as a result of the deed of

novation.

SRIEA QR RIER BB R AR R 4 SRR
w2 EIEPREE 2 S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BEZ—F—ENA=THIEFE

2013
SR
HK$'000
TFETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETE
Loss before taxation BBt A B8 (125,532)
Adjustments for: P
Amortisation of intangible assets | B ERH 24,669
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE
equipment 13,748
Finance costs IR IDPN 25,421
Gain on disposal of property, plant and H&E¥E - BE K&z kS
equipment (236)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries ~ BUBGMHE 2 & 2 Ykt —
Gain on settlement of borrowings BEEEZ KRGS —
Impairment loss on trade receivable FEWE 5 IRF BB E 1R =
Impairment loss on amounts due from  fEURERE A R1ZRIB 2 R {EE1E
related companies 1,089
Impairment loss on intangible asset BV EEZREBE 3,602
Impairment loss on other receivables H At FEUGRIE 2 R E & 18 624
Interest income MEUA (1,314)
Profit on sale of players’ registrations RER=—$> 9= Eatipwding ] (77,125)
Property, plant and equipment written 5% - BE M RE
off 59
Operating cash flows before LBACFHR ILERSNR
movements in working capital (134,995)
Decrease in inventories FERL 90
Decrease in trade receivables FE W B 5 BRROR 33,275
(Increase) decrease in deposits, B& ~ BT FIE K& E Ath FE YRR
prepayments and other receivables () 8,319
Decrease in transfer fee payables EEe &R (87,527)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables  JEfIE ZEE O 4>) &0 910
Increase (decrease) in accruals and FERT I K L At AT SRIEE AN CRL )
other payables (11,312)
Increase (decrease) in deferred capital IR iE & A% 238 Hn Opt )
grants (688)
Decrease in deferred income W AR (3,962)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETEHRAZREFH
ACTIVITIES (145,890)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2014

=
BE—F—ENA=F+HIFE

2014 2013
—2-mF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Proceeds from the sale of intangible HEEFEEZFTSHIE
assets 43,199 83,104
Proceeds from the sale of property, HEME - BERREZEHIE
plant and equipment 2,186 381
Interest received B FILE 142 225
Repayments from related companies BE N RER 256 68
Acquisition of intangible assets W BE fm T & B (6,396) (3,395)
Acquisition of property, plant and WHEMZ ~ 5 Rk
equipment (13,227) (7,520)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REFDEEZREFEH
ACTIVITIES 26,160 72,863
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (82,848) (10,682)
Interest expenses paid Eﬁﬂ S (119) (415)
Proceeds from issue of new shares EITHTAR 2 FT1S 3RIR 62,050 —
Issue of convertible bonds é‘é TA]RES 167,000 —
Proceeds from new borrowings FEECEEIE 47,628 62,096
(Repayment to) advances from (BR)EFEXK
directors (544) 544
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METDEE2REFEH
ACTIVITIES 193,167 51,543
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RE&KBELEEEERMORL)EEHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 85,438 (21,484)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE ¥z B &R BEELEEEHR
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 49,996 72,604
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EZR%&E)
CHANGES 7,573 (1,124)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FR 2 R&RBESZEER -
END OF THE YEAR, represented by BIRITAR NI ®
bank balance and cash 143,007 49,996
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE-F-—MFAA=+HLFE

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

Birmingham International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
Note 24.

The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and for those subsidiaries
established in the United Kingdom (“U.K”) is Great
Britain Pounds (“GBP").
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$")

The consolidated financial

for the convenience of users of the consolidated financial
statements as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

1.

AN EE
BAHRKERBR IR ([ARA])
ERESREBEMRIZAERREAERRD
A REEHARXZMBRAE([H
RFT)) BT e

ARRZEMMER R EBEXME
Z AR ARNFE A B ER —ER R -

ARRABEBRFREZER - MEME
NAZ EBXBEHNME24

ARmREMB AR (SEHAEE])
2R ARIT(ET]) » MRE
B([5E B ) Bz 2 M 8 & Rl 2 2 B
ERREFE(TRE]) - HRARER
RELT - RO BREAMBRRER
IR EMBHERTIABT(ET])

E I

ot DA

mAEEE

(a) EBHIEH
A MWK TIRE B GETED
NGB BB RS LR
REL - LI HAMBHRRE
TREE X PR 7 £ AR R E
mRRD) R EFE R B EEIR
EZERRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA =1 HIEFE

#p = — &

Bl =

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$153,114,000
for the year ended 30 June 2014 and had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$96,855,000
as at 30 June 2014. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore that it may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liability
in the normal course of business. Nevertheless, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
for the next twelve months from 30 June 2014 given
that:

i) the subsequent to the end of the reporting
Limited, the
subscriber, a company owned as to 50% by

period, Deluxe Crystal

Cheung Shing (the chairman and executive
director) and 50% by Ma Shui Cheong (the
vice-chairman and executive director), and
the Company entered into a subscription
agreement in respect of the issue of
convertible bonds in the principal aggregate
amount of HK$120,000,000 which carries
interest of 7.5% per annum and due in 2016;
and

i if necessary, in order to meet the Group’s
funding requirements the directors of the
Company will consider to raise funds by
way of issuing additional equity and/or debt
securities.

2.

RBEXE )

(b)

BEREREE
AEEHE-ZT—NFNA
=THIEFESRSAAAHE
B AFEILEE X 153,114,000
BT W —ZE—MERA
=SETEERDAEBFEELD
96,855,000% 7T ° % 15 M &
TFEA A S B ELE
ZEENBRERERB 2 EAT
e - ARKBEATRER M AT
RIEBEBRIEREREEE
LERESE - A AR
EERRAEEKABRHE
BEES  AA-Z—MERNA
=T HERR+ZEA 2 HkKs
BITEMBEE  REAR :

i) REEHRE R
88 A Deluxe Crystal
Limited (B8 3k A (FE
BHRATEFT)HESR
50% & 55 im 2 (8l &+
EHRATEF)HESR
50% 2 2 A ) AR R
AT RERZE - A
REBEITASERE
120,000,000 & 7T * &
FFET7.5%:TBILR
ZE-ARFHHzA
BRES &

i) WEHFZ BEMNXK
SEZEEHTRK K
RAEFEKEBEB
BITHEMER R
BHEEHFITAERE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE-F-—MFAA=+HLFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Going concern basis (Continued)
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to the consolidated financial
statements to write-down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”):

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS

12

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HKFRS 19

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 —
2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11
“Joint Arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate
Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the
Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10 “Consolidation
Financial Statements”

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor
has control over an investee when (a) it has power over
the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and (c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control
over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10 “Consolidation

Financial Statements” (Continued)

The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 July, 2013.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company concluded that
the application of HKFRS 10 has had no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the new definition of control and the related guidance set

out in HKFRS 10.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of

Interests in Other Entities”

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the
fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories

or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (Continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price

that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer

a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of

a liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or

most advantageous) market at the measurement date

under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS

13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using another valuation

technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure

requirements. The application of HKFRS 13 has not had

any material impact on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective:

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)
—Int 21

48

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 cycle?

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

Investment Entities'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in
Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Levies!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE-F-—MFAA=+HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective:
(Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2

2014.
3

are finalised.
4

2014 with limited exceptions.
5

2016.
6

2017.
7

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements,
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for

the classification and measurement of financial assets.

HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for

the classification and measurement of financial liabilities

and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” to be subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERFITRKLETEAE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
based on the analysis of the Group’s financial
instruments as at 30 June 2014.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 — inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

o Level 2 — inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 — inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBE®
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESFTBEHIINR T °

(a) Basis of consolidation (a) HERBEEXE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its powers to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including freehold
land and buildings held for use in the supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TEE€HEZE )
(Continued)
(d)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) d) Y% BERREE)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ended 30 June 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Signing on fees and image rights

Signing on fees and image rights are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the player’'s contract. Prepayments/accruals
arising at the end of the reporting period are
recognised within prepayments, deferred income or
accruals under current assets or current liabilities,

as appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

0]

Acquired players’ registrations

Costs of acquisition of players’ registrations are
initially recognised at fair value at the date of
acquisition and amortised over the period of the
respective player’'s contract, being between one
to five years. A provision is made in accruals,
where in management’s opinion, the club is likely
to achieve a contractually agreed number of first
team appearances. Where the outcome of this
is uncertain, the maximum amount payable is
disclosed as a contingent liability.

For the purposes of impairment testing, acquired
players’ registration are classified as a single cash-
generating unit until the point at which:

° it is made clear that the player no longer
remains as an active member of the playing
squad. In these circumstances the carrying
value of the players’ registration is reviewed
against a measureable net realisable value;
or

° the carrying amount of a registration will be
recovered through sale. The measurement
of such registration is at the lower of (i) fair
value (less costs to sell) and (ii) carrying
value. Amortisation of such registration is
suspended at the time of reclassification,
although impairment charges still need to be
made if applicable.

Deferred income

Deferred income relates to amounts received from
sponsorships and sale of season tickets and is
released to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period to which it relates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from related companies, cash held at non-
bank financial institutions and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBE®
(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) SRMIAE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

° disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, amounts due from related
companies and other receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. IFE€HEBZE o)

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) EWMIAE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) LHEEREZ)
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of BRI SR Z B EE -
the impairment loss is measured as the difference BEBE e EEEEREE

between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables and amounts due
from related companies, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable, other receivable or amount due
from a related company is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

4.

7T 4F

28

NA=THIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including transfer fee
payables, trade payables, other payables,
amount(s) due to a former director/directors and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity instrument. The
conversion option classified in equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium.

Convertible bonds that are not redeemable and
mandatorily converted into share capital are
classified in as equity.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
convertible bonds with an equity component are
charged directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE

HE—

4.

e

=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

Financial instruments (Continued)

Transactions with owners

The Group applies a policy of treating loans from
shareholders as transactions between owners
in their capacity as owners. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss from the waiver of loans.
Any deemed contribution from the shareholder
arising from the waiver is recognised directly in
equity.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
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HE-ZF

4.

FFENH =

THIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)}

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash comprise cash at bank
and on hand with a maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of
bank balances and cash as defined above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
E—IFNHA=FHIFFE

HE=

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U}

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and sales related taxes.

i) Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered
and titles have passed, at which time the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivable is
reasonably assured.

i) Season tickets and corporate hospitality
revenue are recognised over the period of
the football season as home matches are
played.

iii) Gate receipts and other matchday revenue
are recognised as the games are played.
Prize money in respect of cup competitions
is recognised when received. Sponsorship
and similar commercial income is recognised
over the duration of the respective contracts.
The fixed element of broadcasting revenues
is recognised over the duration of the
football season whilst facility fees received
for live coverage or highlights are taken
when earned. Merit awards are recognised
only when known at the end of the football
season.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESHBE®

(Continued)
() Revenue recognition (Continued) () WETRR(E)
iv) Interest income from a financial asset is iv) é%ﬁﬁﬁz%‘lgﬂﬁlk

recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

V) Services income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Capital grants

Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Grants and donations received in respect of
safety work and stadium developments are initially
recognised as deferred capital grants in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the assets to which they relate. Football Trust
grants received are released to profit or loss when
the related expenditures are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBE®
(Continued)
(n)  Taxation (Continued) (n) HEE)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE

o
BE—F

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(0)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recoginsed at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

4.

7T 4F
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SIG

NA=THIFFE

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0)

(p)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. IFE€HEBZE o)

(Continued)

(p) Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (p) EFEREFEE(BEE(RL
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in XEBEHEZETBER)R
respect of goodwill above) (Continued) SN RE(E)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA =1 HIEFE
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Bl =

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses and paid annual
leaves are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payments or settlements
are deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present value.

(ii) Retirement benefit costs
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

(iii)  National insurance contribution
Contributions to the national insurance
contribution of its overseas subsidiaries as
required under respective requirement in
the U.K are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE-F-—MFAA=+HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ES:HE®)
(Continued)
(9] Share based payments (t) LR = 2 RIE

Share options granted to employees/directors
For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of
grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(i) Going concern

Although the Group has net current liabilities at the
end of the reporting period, the Group manages its
liquidity risk by monitoring its current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly and ensuring
sufficient liquid cash to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. The
directors of the Company consider that the Group
has no significant liquidity risk.

(ii) Income tax

The Group’s tax losses are mainly derived from its
football operation in the U.K. At the end of each
reporting period, the directors of the Company
estimate whether there are any deferred tax assets
from future profits or taxable temporary differences
that should be recognised. No deferred tax assets
will be recognised if the future profit streams are
unpredictable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EBEARSHHERETEME

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to previous estimates, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or on-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

ii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount which was determined by either based on
fair value less cost to sell method. The fair value of
the assets were determined by management based
on recent market transactions. The market approach
involves a direct comparison of the assets being
appraised to similar assets that have sold in the
same or in a similar market.

The Group determines whether an asset is
impaired at least on an annual basis or where
an indication of impairment exists. At 30 June
2014, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is approximately HK$281,425,000 (2013:
HK$264,119,000), and management of the Group
determined that no impairment loss has been
recognised for the two years ended 30 June 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EAS:#ERETE M
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION THHBEZ#)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) T AR EZEERER(ZE)
iii)  Impairment of trade and other receivables i)  EREZ RN REMERNE

The directors of the Company periodically review
its receivables to assess whether impairment exists.
In determining whether impairment should be
provided, the directors of the Company evaluated
individually each account for impairment after taking
into account the value of each client account’s
underlying collateral and the latest financial position
of those clients in default of settlement.

At 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$19,153,000
(2013: HK$93,687,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$148,000
(2013: HK$106,000).

At 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately HK$1,500,000 (2013:
HK$1,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$475,000 (2013: HK$7,112,000).

At 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of amounts
due from related companies was approximately
HK$993,000 (2013: HK$1,249,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately Nil
(2013: HK$5,682,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EASHHUERTIEH:T
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION TEHHBARZE#)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

R THEEZEZEERR(E)
iv)  Player transfer costs iv) HEBEE

The management of Birmingham City Plc (*BCP”),
a subsidiary of the Company, have to make certain
judgments as to whether a liability should be
recognised under the terms of the contracts with
other football clubs in respect of player transfers.
This includes whether in the managements’ opinion,
at the end of the reporting period, the football
club is likely to retain Championship league
status in the next season. It also requires certain
judgments as to whether a player will continue
to make the contractually agreed number of first
team appearances. Based on these judgments,
management will decide on a player by player
basis as to whether the liability should be disclosed
as a contingent liability in Note 47(i) or whether
it becomes a liability and is recognised in trade
payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Intangible assets — acquire players’ registration
At the end of each reporting period, the
management of BCP considers the recoverability
of the acquired players’ registration based on
current estimated fair values. The management of
BCP considers the economic life of the players’
registration to be between one to five years,
based on the respective players’ contracts. These
are reviewed annually on a player by player
basis to determine whether there are indicators
of impairment. Determining whether the players’
registration should be impaired at the end of
the reporting period is based on management’s
judgment of whether the player will no longer remain
an active member of the playing squad and an
assessment of the football club’s likeliness to retain
Championship league status in the next season.
At 30 June 2014, the carrying value of intangible
assets-player registration was approximately
HK$3,227,000 (2013: HK$1,791,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$69,673,000 (2013: HK$65,167,000).
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
vi) Intangible assets — trademark
In accordance with HKAS 36
of Assets”, the Group completed its annual

“Impairment

impairment test for trademark by comparing their
recoverable amount to its carrying amount as
at 30 June 2014. The Group has conducted a
valuation of the trademark as a cash generating
unit based on the income approach. The resulting
value of the trademark as at 30 June 2014 was
approximately equal to their carrying amount.
This valuation uses cash flow projections based
on financial estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of trademark to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. At 30
June 2014, the carrying value of intangible assets-
trademark was approximately HK$40,400,000 (2013:
HK$36,105,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of approximately HK$567,615,000 was
recognised (2013: HK$507,276,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior periods.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes the amounts due to former directors disclosed
in Note 35, borrowings disclosed in Note 37 and amounts
due to directors disclosed in Note 38, net of cash held
at non-bank financial institutions disclosed in Note 29,
bank balances and cash disclosed in Note 30 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves.
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital

structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,

the management considers the cost of capital and the

risks associated with each class of capital. The Group

has a target gearing ratio of 15%-20% determined as the

proportion of net debt to equity.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:

EeRBERE#)

A B S L RS AR SR
% - fEBREZ—H5  TREZE
BERARELEEAEBEZ AR -
AEEBEEAAELKA15%
T 20% © JYIREEFEEHERZ LI
EE o

MBERARZERNBBLRNAT :

The Group
A&
2014 2013
—E-{F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Debts (Note i) BIE (M) 144,910 369,017
Cash held at non-bank financial institutions R IESRTTE REIBRTIIR S 1) (1)
Bank balances and cash RITEBR KRS (140,007) (49,996)
Net debt BIE% 4R 4,902 319,020
Equity (Note ii) wew (Haii) 161,448 (99,529)
Net debt to equity ratio BIE SRR 2 L& 3.04% N/A*
Notes: Hiat -

(i) Debts comprise long-term and short-term borrowings. (i) EEBERAREHEE -

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to (ii) BRBEMERRREE AEL

owners of the Company.

As the Group had a net deficiency in capital at 30 June

2013, the Group’s gearing ratio as at that date were not

applicable. The directors of the Company have given

careful consideration on the measures currently undertaken

in respect of the Group’s liquidity position. The directors of

the Company believe that the Group will be able to meet

in full its financial obligations as they fall due based on the

Group’s working capital sufficiency plans as explained in

Note 2(b).

BEARRGEE -

* HRAEER T —=4FHA
—tTHEEABMER A&
BRZAZERABLEERTE

ARAEFEFEEELRF
RAKEZRBDESAHRRTRZ
%Eﬁ ARAREEFRE REX

B =& &2 7R A8 (B
WEEZ( VPERRR) - AEE KR
ERETHEIRZMBEL -

£ # Annual Report 2014

79



80

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

Eor the year ended 30 June 2014

R, = N IR
BR—F—NFANA=THIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. TRTIA
Categories of financial instruments ERMITEZER
The Group The Company
rEH ART
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—MF —F—=F —E—MF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FET FET FET
Financial assets CREE
Loans and receivables B3k & UGB
(including bank (BIERT
balances and cash) HEHRRIRE) 164,654 144,934 126,119 49,565
Financial liabilities TREE
Quasi-equity loan EREMEEE R 5,582 182,808 5,582 5,582
Financial liabilities at BN 2 & R
amortised cost =L 248,829 298,666 113,586 157,923
254,411 481,474 119,168 163,505
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. SHEAREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, cash held at non-bank financial institutions,
bank balances and cash, transfer fee payables, trade
payables, other payables, amount(s) due to former
directors/directors and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Currency risk

The Group’s main operation is in the U.K with most
of the transactions settled in GBP and does not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes

in foreign currency exchange rates.

FEEZEIZeRIEAERKES
BRAK - EAEUGRIR - BKERE R ]
R RIERTERMBBHAFRS -
RTEBIRS  BNESE BN
BN - EMENRIE - EBNATE
E2/EEFEREE -ZEFLRMIA
ZRBER BN ERE - B%ES
MIEBBEZRRERETSRR(E
BREREANERR) - EERR T
PEDER o MEZTER 2 RERH
RTX - EREERRERZERR
VARELR Be B 3 8 20 B HE 3 R A

(a)

ERER
REBRRE 2 TRLENR
AHAR ARG EE -
I 4 T S RSN [ R B iy A
EZEXRER °

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Bt 75 R 2% Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2014
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8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The interest income derived from the Group’s
current and short-term time deposits that carry
interest at the respective banking deposit rate of the
banks and non-bank financial institutions at fixed
rates located in the U.K and Hong Kong.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to its fixed-rate borrowings (see Note 37
for details of these borrowings) for the years ended
30 June 2013 and 2014. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable-rate borrowings (see Note
37 for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

Sensitivity analysis

As of 30 June 2014, it is estimated that a general
100 basis point increase or decrease in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase or decrease the Group’s loss for the year
ended and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$21,000 (2013: HK$31,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the
next reporting period. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Credit risk

At 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group and the
Company in the event of the counterparties’ failure
to perform their obligations in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statements
of financial position at the end of the reporting
period.

In respect of trade receivables, other receivables
and amounts due from related companies, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all receivables
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
receivable. The default risk of the industry and
country in which the receivable operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset.

At 30 June 2014, the Group has concentration of
credit risk as 44% (2013: 36%) and 74% (2013:
93%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.

At 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Group has
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations as all of the trade receivables was from
the U.K.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are authorised banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies in Hong Kong and U.K.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the holding
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 30
June 2014 as the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$96,855,000. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations and the details of which are set out in
Note 2(b).

8.

cRERERE )

(c)

(d)

FERBR(E)

X EE B A EAERRZ
BT FERRERASS
BMEEZRHEE -

R=ZZF—WFA=+H" &
SEEEERBERER -
THERERESRAIBEZ
44% (=T — =4 : 36%) &
7T4%(ZF — = :93%) D
AREAREEZzHZAZFE R
REF AT

RoB-MER-B-=FX
A=+8 - ARAEERE S
BRSO RE - AR
ERBIEIOEET -

HRRZHF HEERIEEE
REEFARERESEEN
B2 BRIERTT  WRBES
ZEERRER -

MENE EER
AEBRERZEBLEDTT
BERSER  BREARERE
MRIER IR E R B EE AR
NEHReFR(EEERB
BETRLCEE 2 REKF
BABSERARESSH
/fE) °

AEBZBRBEMERB A
RIEHRSESTFR - ARER
HeRmeiRere  BHE
RHEBRERHRZRDESR

%= o

HARAEE 2 RB B EFEL
/96,855,000 It © A&
RZZE—MNFENA=1+HEX
EnBERER - AARES
RAERNARGEBRHEEER
SUBITHMBEME - AFlE
R HIFE2(D) °

£ # Annual Report 2014

83



84

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

8.

1] £4F

28

NA=THIFFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. cHERERE )
(Continued)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) d) HBELERE)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TREFMASEFTESRE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BB TELHEHA - ZKE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on EEMBECARIARERE
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BERASE W ERTRZ
based on the earliest date on which the Group can TP HAHE] - LEE - AR
be required to pay. Specifically, borrowings with a EREEBERZEELT AR
repayment on demand clause are included in the ERHER - Timaeh aaeEeE
earliest time based regardless of the probability of TR ERER - HMIETTE SR
the choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity BEZEHE TR HEZER
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are HEAME °
based on the agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash ZrRBEMNERAESES R
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating 2 WHBERERZEFTE -
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from BIARREHIR 2 MR h 5t
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period. KA SFE -
The Group rEEH
Total contractual Within 1 year or More than 1 year but More than 2 years but
Carrying amount undiscounted cash flow on demand less than 2 years less than 5 years
RAE BANAEERLTE H-FRAEER ~FABRAER FEABREER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z5-mF "% ZF-ME "3 Z3-ME CT-cF CE-BE C3-cE Z3-ME CT-=F
HKS'000  HKSO00 ~ HKS000  HKSO00 ~ HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKSO00 - HKS'000  HKS(000
BT TAr | fBr i | fBn TEn | #Bn  Tén | #Bn i
Transfer fee payables  EffE#&% 4,506 8,428 4,506 8428 3,802 8428 704 = - =
Trade payables Efi B A5 26,284 28,705 26,284 28,705 26,284 28705 - - - -
Accualsandother  EEFEUBRA(
payables [z 78,111 75,324 78,711 75,324 78,190 75,324 521 = - =
Amounts due to former  ERETEZ50E
directors 10,780 519 10,780 5198 10,780 5198 - - - -
Borrowings [EE 134,130 180,467 140,136 189,727 139,258 187,665 620 1,833 258 229
Amounts dug to ERESTE
directors - 183,352 - 198,462 - 544 - 197918 - -
254,411 481,474 260,417 505,844 258,314 305,864 1,845 199,751 258 229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR5 B3 R R B

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BEZ—F—ENA=THIEFE

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. SHEKREE®
(Continued)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REBELERE)
The Company rEEH
Total contractual Within 1 year or More than 1 year but
Carrying amount undiscounted cash flow on demand less than 2 years
R BANFERRLHE R-EAHEER -ERERAER
2013 2013 013 2013
5k 5% -3k E-cf
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$ 000
7AT 7ET 7A7T 7AT
Accruals and other payables ] 47,951 47,951 47,951 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBAT
7R 6,812 6,812 6,812 -
Amounts due fo former directors  EfTATEE5E 5198 5198 5198 -
Borrowings 8 97418 149,316 149,316 -
Amounts dus to directors EREZE 6,126 6,126 544 5,582
163,505 215,403 209,821 5582
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 75 R 2% Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2014

o —
HE—Z

9.

10.

HENA=FHILFE

FAIR VALUE

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

The directors of the Company also consider that the fair
value of the long-term portion of liabilities approximates to
their carrying amount as they are carried at amortised cost
by using effective interest rate method.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision
makers, who are responsible for allocating and assessing
segment performance, have been identified as the board
of directors as they collectively make strategic decision
in allocating the Group’s resources and assessing
performance. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision makers have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) professional football operation;

(i) apparel sourcing & trading;

(iii) entertainment & media services; and

(iv) investment holding

10.

AR
ARBEERRREEU B RE 2 #
HRAARZEREERSRABLZ
FHERBERLE  HEAQTE
RE

ARBEZTRA > BEZRHHN
2 B Rl B 7S {50 R R R 2R
EERTE - BEEREERE

TEEH
A B R A R E RS R

RAFEEHRBEIERTE - RAED
REREFEDBERRZEFEEER

RECHEBIRESS - REBAE
BRI 2mOBE - AREEERKE
WA PR 2 R E DI ©

BEEMmME  AEEREDBMBER
SRR FERFE A RRMBRCE DB
"|i

(i) B RERAE

(i)  RERELES

(i) IREERIHBART &

(iv)  REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information about these reportable segments is

presented below:

a)

Segment revenues and results
For the year ended 30 June

Professional Apparel sourcing
football operation & trading
BRRREE RHRERES

2014 2013 2014 213
= S e R D
HKSO00 HKS000 - HKSO00 | HKS000
fEL_  TET | fEm TET

10.

Entertainment
& media services

RERRRRY

2014
“%-pfF
HKS 000
&R

BERE)

ZEAEROBZORERZIIM]M

PEWBEREE
HEANA=+HILFE

Investment holding Total
RERR &3t

2014 2013 2014 2013
=S-ME S —3--F Sl “R-oF
HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKS'000  HKS000
fEn 7T | TEn TET

Segment revenue:  AHENE
External sales e 263201 294497 - -

= — /3221 204497

Segment results EEL (64501) (45,198) - -

(684) (2) (65185  (45.250)

Unallocated corporate &ARAFKA
income and R&E%

eXpenses

Loss before taxation ~ BHiHIER

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 4. The segment results represent
the results earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, impairment loss on amounts due from
related companies, interest income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision makers, being the directors
of the Company, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

(10048)  (80282)

(135283) (12559

reEN Bz BREN T4
Pt 2 A& B & 5 BORAER o
DRRRBTIAR DB RITHK
- ERZHE  BREAEAF
RIBZRERE - MBWAR
TSR A2 B D SEFTRER 2 2
B WWMBEREERRE
(AMARBES)RENANDE
BREFEDRRRZEER

.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10.
b) Segment assets and liabilities b)
At 30 June
Professional Apparel sourcing Entertainment
football operation & trading & media services
BRRREE RHRERES RERRRRY
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-MF -3-f ZE-RF F--F (ZR-MF %3-S
HKS'000  HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKSO00 - HKS'000 HKS000

FEr  Tér | TEn | TEr | TEn TEn

DEER @)

PHEEERAE
RAXB=1+H

Investment holding Total
RERR a3t
2014 013 2014 213
SR-@E -%--f ZR-EE C%-=F
HK$'000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000 HK$000
Fén | 7Er | TEm TEr

ASSETS EE
Segment assets PBEE 364973 398,139 - — - - 2,133 722 367,106 398,361
Unallocated segment ~ £AEAE
assefs BE 161,786 66,100
Total assets EEBA 528802 464,961
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabilties PEEE 87,920 139418 - - - 2 - — 87,320 139,439
Unallocated segment ~ £AEAE
liabilities BfF 216,392 424791
Total liabilities ] 363,712 564,230

For the purpose of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segment:

o all assets are allocated to operating
segments, other than amounts due from
related companies, cash held at non-bank
financial institutions, bank balances and cash
which are not able to allocate into reportable
segments.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments, other than borrowings, deferred
tax liabilities, income tax payable and
amount(s) due to a former director/directors
which are not able to allocate into reportable
segments.

RABERSBRBRNRSE
FoEER :

. B FE U BE E 2 B
B RIFRITE R
BT HEIARRT
o S B AN
ER2HmDAN - T
BREECARTHRE

a g
DI ©

. BRiEE - BEEHER
B BNMEHEE
NAESE " EEXA
TN EEF Z2RD
B BEREESD
T REENHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BEZ—F—ENA=THIEFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 2 EER @)
c) Other segment information: c) Hit 2 8BEHR :
Professional Apparel sourcing Entertainment
foothall operation & trading & media services Investment holding Unallocated Total
BERReE EHRERES RERRERE RERR #9E i
013 2013 013 013 2013 013
3-=f I i s a3 i 3
HKS 000 Hi$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FiT i 7z i 74T 7T
Amounts included inthe AR EEEE
measure of segment profit ~ AEEEHEEE
orloss or segmentassets 2318
Additons to non-current assels REFEEEE
(Note) W) 10915 - - - - 10915
Amortisaton of intangible assets EF/AEEH (04.669) = = = = (24.669)
Depreciafion o property, 0% FERE
plant and equipment & (13.460) - - (288) - (13749)
(Gain on disposal of property,  HEHE « FERR
plant and equipment E2hs - - - 26 - 26
mpairment loss on intangible ~ &AEZREEE
assets (3,602) - - - - (3,602)
Impaimentlossontrade ~ EMBAERZAE
receivable BE - - - - - -
Profiton sales of players' ~ HERE 2R
Tegisirations 1112 - - - - 111%
Property, plant and equipment 11 « BER
writen off Bt (59) = - - = (59)
Professional Apparel sourcing Entertainment
football operation & trading & media services Investment holding Total
BERREE HHFERES BARRERE REER &t
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
25k I5-ZE 5= i i
HK§'000 HK8000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000
71 7T 7T 77 77
Amounts regularly  EHHEREE
provided to the RREER
chief operating BRTARE
decision makers but  EHHHEE
notincludedinthe ~ EEEEEY
measure of segment &
profit or loss or
segment assets
Gain on setflementof  EEESZAE
borrowings = = = = =
Impairment losson ~ EfEMEEL
other receivables HEEE - - - 624 624
Impaimentlosson ~~ EREEAR
amounts due from A2 HEEE
related companies - - - (1,089) (1,089)
Interest income HEMA 225 - - 1,089 1314
Interest expenses flams (8,209) = = (17.212) (25,421)
Note: Non-current assets included property, plant and Hiat - ERBDEEBEME B

equipment and intangible assets.

B RBBAREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

Eor the year ended 30 June 2014

R, = N IR
BR—F—NFANA=THIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Geographic information
Information about the Group’s revenue from
external customers and non-current assets is
presented based on the location of operations and
geographical location of assets respectively.

10.

rREER =)

(d) HEEH
BRAEERENDES 2K
HRIERBBEZBRTIH R
RIS R S 2
51| -

Revenue from external

customers
For the year ended Non-current assets

30 June At 30 June

REIBEF 2 W@ FRBEE

BEXA=tHLEFE RAB=+H
2014 2013 2014 2013
SE2-mE —_T-=F ZB-0OF _—_T-=F
HK$°’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT FHET FAET
Hong Kong 55 — — 4,728 722

United Kingdom HE
(place of domicile) (&@ATIEMD) 253,227 294,497 320,324 301,293
253,227 294,497 325,052 302,015
(e) Information about major customers (e) EHEFEEFZER

No revenue was received from customers
contributing more than 10% of the total sales of
Group for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

11. TURNOVER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowance and
exclude value added tax or other sales related taxes and
are analysed as follows:

11.

HEZ—NFR-ZT—=F
NAZTHLESFE - BEKER
B2 as bR B R E R
2 10% A £ o

ERA

Woss iz B Sk IR (B 2 & FEE
B WHEGEARPRE BNk
HMBLORBEL IR - BT 81T
EN s H ERRETIR - LD
T

2014 2013

—F-OF —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Television broadcasting BRERE 151,067 179,828
Commercial income EEIA 56,886 63,529
Matching receipts BREUWT A 45,274 51,140
253,227 294,497
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

12.

HENA=FHIEFE

13.

OTHER INCOME 12. HAlgA
2014 2013
—B-nmE —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBET
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BMERREZ
equipment Wiz 230 236
Interest income FLEHA 142 1,314
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries B SEERE M B A Bl 2 W 419 —
Subsidies received from the Premier HRBERSZ
League (Note) e (A1) 6,178 5,843
Sundry income HMIEUA 1,616 10
8,585 7,403
Note: During the year ended 30 June 2014, the professional B : REBEE-ZZFT-—WNFE~A=+H
football operation received funding from the Premier IFFEE BERKREERET
League under the Elite Player Performance Plan on R AR R - BIBIFHEIR
fulfillment of certain term and conditions approximately BEXRFFEERBESESY
HK$6,178,000 (2013: HK$5,843,000). 6,178,000 (= T — = F :

FINANCE COSTS

5,843,000 7T) °

13. BI#ERA

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expenses on: NTEEZFERY

— Bank loan and overdraft repayable — ERAFRNEEREZ
within five years RITER KRB 61 78

— Other borrowings repayable within five — — BRAFREEZ
years HthEE 18,148 25,006
— Finance leases — BEMEL 58 337
18,267 25 421
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

14.

HENA=FHILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

14. BRBIATE 1B

2014 2013
—E2-lmF ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Loss before taxation is arrived at after B BB RS HIBR A 518
charging: 1BER
Amortisation of intangible assets M A ERE 4,786 24,669
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN &
— Current year — REE 2,191 2,119
— Under-provision in prior years — BEFERETR — 128
2,191 2,247
Cost of inventories sold (Note (i) BEFERAN (K () 7,053 7,940
Cost on operating expenses (Note (ii)) KB AN (AT 2F (i) 355,054 382,975
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE
equipment 11,408 13,748
Impairment loss in trade receivables JEW B 5 R 2 R B & 18 28 —
Impairment loss on other receivables H fth JE W R IE 2 R B B 1R — 624
Minimum lease payments under operating &M 4E N2 FN5|EE 7 &
lease in respect of: K%
— premises — W 2,753 2,552
— motor vehicles — AE 767 —
Foreign exchange loss (net) SNPE E5iE (JF58) — 1,831
Staff costs (excluding director’s and chief BIXA(TBIEEE N
executive’s emoluments) FETERABZHE)
— Wages and salaries — IEKkF® 233,470 248,500
— Contributions to defined contribution — REHFRIKRETEZ
retirement plans HER 25,755 29,845
250,225 078,345
Property, plant and equipment written off #4412 - W= KL &RE = 59

Notes: Kiat -
(i) Cost of inventories sold represents the cost in relation to (i)
the sales of sportswear and other accessories from the
professional football operation.
(i) Cost of operating expenses mainly represents the salaries (i)

and related bonus to the football players and expenses

incurred during matches of the football club.

HEFERAEHERERHE
B2 BBIRE R AT Z KA -

BERXRATEEIMN TR
Bz Fe RBBIEL  URERE
RIRBHRMELEZ X °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE-F-—MFAA=+HLFE

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

15. FiEHip< (%)

Income tax expense (credit) in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

A BE R AR EREENZHIE
BB (M) 8

2014 2013
—ZE-mF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Corporation taxation — U.K RER — HE

Current year REE 22,693 —

Deferred taxation — U.K ERERRIE —
Current year REE — (1,618)
Attributable to a change in tax rate TR BFTEL (1,661) (3,326)
21,032 (4,944)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong for the two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the U.K are subject to
Corporation Tax in the U.K (“Corporation Tax”). Corporation
tax is calculated at 23% of the estimated assessable profit
for the year ended 30 June 2014.

No provision has been made in respect of Corporation Tax
as these subsidiaries did not derive any assessable profits
for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

HRAEEREE-T—NER=-F
—Z=FRA=1 B I MEFE L ER
BREELRRBEH - WA EAEFS
MESRIEHL RS -

St )% M B 2 2 2 IR B
R 2 TR -

REBREE 2 B A R BN EE
ER(RER]) -  CERDIREE
—E—MEANA=THIEFEZ Gt
JERTE @M 2 23% &1 & ©

HRZEMNBRARBE_T—NOK
TR =FRASTRIEFETEE
EEAERBORF - BRI BB DR
TR B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

EH2HE—

15.

E—FNA=1THIFFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 15.

(Continued)

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be

reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

FrEFHEXX(ER)#®)

ANEEMEHRBAYL (KR JE2AGE
BREREMEERESER ZBRBATEER
HERMT :

2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Loss before taxation

BBl B 1B

(135,233) (125,532)

Taxation calculated at respective domestic

VAR AN HA TE Bt R 5T 8 2

statutory tax rate 1A (26,417) (24,960)
Effect of a change in tax rate HEREH I ZE (1,661) (3,326)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ RA[HIFI T H 2

tax purposes Mg E 18,331 17,351
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERTBAZ

purposes Mg 2 (13,908) (2,330)
Capital contribution & 44,687 —
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERREATIEEEZ

recognised Mg 2 — 8,321
Income tax expense (credit) FrSHif (B e) 21,032 (4,944)

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 39.

EERR 2 FIEHANHIFE39
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BEZ—F—ENA=THIEFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 16. EERFETHRAEZ

EMOLUMENTS [
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the FAENKENSES 2B E
directors during the year were as follows: T
For the year ended 30 June 2014 BE-_Z-NEXA=tHL
FE

Executive Directors BiTES

Cheung Shing (Chairman) RK(EE) (RN=F-—IEF
(redesignated on 4 February “RMBERE)
2014)

Ma Shui Cheong (Vice Chairman) S3%E(8/1Z%)
(redesignated on 4 February (R=Z-mF-AmA

2014) B3R
Peter Pannu (Chief Executive Peter Pannu (778 4% #Z
Officer and Managing Fl4E)
Director)
Chan Shun Wah FIEzE
Cheung Kwai Nang RERE
Chen Liang B
Panagiotis Pavlakis (appointed  Panagiotis Pavlakis
on 17 December 2013) (R=B—=F+_A
THHEZE)
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson BRAR-Z-NF
(resigned on 4 February ZRAMBEHT)
2014)
Charlie Penn (resigned on ES(RZ2-mF
5 February 2014) “ARA#L)

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Wong Ka Chun, Carson BRH
Gao Shi Kui it
Liu Enxue (appointed on RE(N=T—=%
17 December 2013) TZATLHEZR)
Li Hanguo (appointed on FEE(R=3—=F
17 December 2013) +=A++REZT)
The emoluments of Peter Pannu disclosed above ECFT I FE Peter Pannu 2 B
include those for services rendered by him as the SERERDETHRAHFES
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. RSB RERE M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 16. EERFETHAEZ

EMOLUMENTS (continued) [ EAE D)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM2(E)
For the year ended 30 June 2013 BE-—ZE—=FX"A=tHL
FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and scheme
Fees  Dbenefits in kind contributions Total
E =) BRI
e ENET FELRS b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET AT AT
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson (resigned B xR:#(A-E—NF
on 4 February 2014) — AMAET) = 600 — 600
Peter Pannu (appointed on Peter Pannu (M= —=%
19 September 2012) NATNBREZT) — 6,621 70 6,691
Ma Shui Cheong (appointed on ~ Bi&(IR=F——%
7 December 2012) T-AtREZF) = 412 9 421
Lee Yiu Tung (disqualified on ZRFE(N=T-=%
11 January 2013) —A+—AREEER) — 381 8 389
Hui Ho Luek, Vico (resigned on ~ FEB(R-F——%
1 July 2012) +A—BEf) — — — —
Charlie Penn (appointed on EE(R-E-=%
23 April 2013) MA-+=RHEZ{) = 136 3 139
Chen Liang (appointed on BRe(R=T-=F
6 May 2013) TANBEZE) — 184 — 184
Cheung Kwai Nang RE — 376 16 392
Chan Shun Wah BRI - 447 15 462
Cheung Shing (appointed on R (N=F—=F
6 May 2013) hANBEZRE) — 184 — 184
Wong Po Ling, Pauling (retred ~ FER(R-ZT—=F
on 10 May 2013) ARTBEEK) - 521 13 534
- 9,862 134 9,996
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chan Wai Keung (resignedon ~ BER(R=T—=F
16 October 2012) TATAREE) 45 — — 45

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BER(R=Z-=%F1A
(resigned on 13 May 2013) +ZBEE) 124 = = 124
Gao Shi Kui (appointed StER-T-=£RAAN
6 May 2013) REZ) 22 — — 22
Zhou Han Ping (disqualified on ~ BEF(R-ZT—=%
11 January 2013) —A+—BREEER) 64 = — 64
Wong Ka Chun, Carson BRR 144 — — 144
354 - - 354
399 9,862 134 10,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 16.
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

BEERFTETHAEZ
[ EAE D)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EBEMe#E)
Peter Pannu is also the Chief Executive of the Peter Pannu [RIFFIEEZAA ]
Company and his emoluments disclosed above THBE - EXEBEZHER
include those for services rendered by him as the BB BITBURRIR RS 2
Chief Executive. % -
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive REE-_Z—=Fr=-Z—HQ
any emolument paid by the Group during the years FRNAZTHLEFE  HES
ended 30 June 2013 and 2014. No emoluments ERESREREAER L
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an ZEAME  c RBEZZT—=
incentive payment to join or upon joining the Group, FR-ZZE—NEA=+HL
or as compensation for loss of office during the FE  AEEWERERES
years ended 30 June 2013 and 2014. S MEEARBBEMARE
B MAREREE 2 #E - K
TERE R AR 2 BEE o
(b) Management’s emoluments (b) EEEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments REBRAEZSTIA LR -
in the Group, four (2013: one) were directors of ME(ZE—=F: —8)A
the Company whose emoluments are included in ARARESE HBSEN EX
the disclosures above. For the year ended 30 June ZERBEER - HE_ZT—NF
2014, the remaining one (2013: four) management NAZTHLEFE - #BT—%
emolument of the Company was as follows: —E—=F:OZ)AQF
EREsHEMT
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBET
Salaries, allowances and e RUR
benefits in kind EY)1E 7| 3,152 7,198
Bonuses TEAL — 529
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 403 1,016
3,555 8,743
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

16.

17.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 16. EERITETHAEY

EMOLUMENTS (continued) [ EAC D
(b) Management’s emoluments (Continued) (b) EEHEMS(E)
No. of individuals
AE
2014 2013

—FOFE —T=F

Their emoluments fall within the — HBE2ZB& N F A N&EE -
following bands:

Below HK$1,500,000 411,500,000 7% 7T —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T — 2,000,000 77T —_ 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 &7t — 4,000,000 /% T 1 —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /7T — 4,500,000 /87T — 1
1 4
STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING 17. BTN (BEEERFE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S THAEZHE)
EMOLUMENTS)
2014 2013
—ZT—MNF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in %% - 2B R EYEF
kind 248,164 258,362
Fees e 453 399
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROREFIFTEI B3R 25,864 29,979
274,481 288,740
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

e

ey iney
HEZZF

17.

HENA=FHIEFE

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Hong Kong

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2013:
HK$25,000). Apart from the mandatory contributions, the
employer would make monthly voluntary contributions. The
aggregate of the mandatory and voluntary contributions
made by the employer represents 5% of the basic salary
of the employees. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest
immediately. Where there are employees who leave the
Group prior to vesting fully in the voluntary contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. During the year
ended 30 June 2014, a total contribution of approximately
HK$306,000 (2013: HK$238,000) was made by the Group
in respect of this scheme.

U.K

The Group also participates in the National Insurance
Contribution, a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the government in the U.K. The Group
is required to contribute a specific percentage of the
payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
retirement scheme. The assets and liabilities of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. During the year
ended 30 June 2014, a total contribution of approximately
HK$25,558,000 (2013: HK$29,741,000) was made by the
Group in respect of this scheme.

17.

ETRAN(BRERESERFE
THRAEBZME) @)

&8
REBMRBEEBCLH A AER S
GBI E R EBREBIEADE EHE
NERZEBEHTARGIEATE S
Z([aEestall) - BELE A
HBYSEATE 2 REHEIENK
FTEl - RIERTESHE - BERERE
BEBABEREBBBERAZ5%MZ
FTEIEH R - B ARBKRA LR A
30,000 L(=Z — =4 : 25,0007
TT) o BRog Bl RIN - BEAIE A
1B BREE R o BEEL 228514
kB EREEHEEELATFEZ
5% © &t & 2 o8 i 1t 51 T BB 57
B - iR ER BREEREESRE
BEHAEE  AEEEMZHASR
WEBHHR 2z 2 EMAK - REE=
T—NEXNAZTHILEFE  RAEH
Bz AT 81 I 5148 58 49 306,000 75
TT(ZZT—=4 : 238,000/87T) °

KE

RNEE 2 R E BT EN 2 E 5B
FORRGTEIBR R - AEE A
REEETIEZIEERA D MR
FTEIER - HARBEZBRIRET B2 48
ARk AA TSR R8I EF X -
ZitEzEERABNEASEE A
EXRBBEIRIFEE - WERR—EE
VEBES REE-ZT—NFSA
=tTHRIEEE  RNEBEFUEEE
B AA%E %) 25,558,000 8 T (=
— =% : 29,741,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

18.

19.

20.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$153,114,000 (2013: HK$118,760,000)
and the weighted average number of 4,506,109,565 (2013:
3,887,753,400) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 30 June 2014 is the same as the basic loss per
share as the impact of the convertible bonds outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 30 June 2013 is the same as the basic loss per
share as the Company had no dilutive potential shares.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the two years
ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting date.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of approximately HK$296,793,000 (2013:
HK$69,333,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

18.

19.

20.

BREE
ERERBEDZEANFEEZARRAT
%8 A JE1h & 18 49153,114,000 7%

(= & — = % :118,760,000/%
L) KRB AT E B NEF S

£04,506,109,565 % (= & — = 4 :
3,887,753,400f% )5t & -

AREG 2 AR E 5 2 RS U
CHEAEBE_T-OFEXRA
ZtRLFEZERESHERREGR
EAREERER o

E/ ZE[S

AR R 7 3 4 7 A BE D
=FERNA=ZTHLESFE

- #aT

GE —

il

ZEREEBRESREAEIRN
B

Hﬁ 1%\

BE-T-MER-FT-=FAXA
=+ B 1 P B R 3 R S R A
WL CEEPUS &3 Uidaols

ol c
o

EKARBEEANEBELREE
Eia
RAGEBABEARFEEERRE
8518 49296,793,000/ Jo( = F — =
£ : 69,333,000 L) + ERAR A
Z BTSRRI o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE=ZLF—IFNA=1HILFE
21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. ¥ - BEKRRE
The Group REE
Freehold land
and buildings Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
XA%E improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
THEEF  HENERE GiR%E BAERME RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AL AT AT TET AT
COST 7
At 1 July 2012 WZE-—%tf-H 289,269 477 31,761 90 2,624 325,091
Exchange realignment [ % (7,575) - (816) — (54) (8,445)
Additions NE 4,600 180 2,488 — 252 7,520
Disposals HE - - (285) — (755) (1,040)
Written off during the EMfH
year (Note (i) (B (i) - — (17) (152) — (169)
At 30 June 2013 NZE—=
~NAZTH 286,294 657 33,131 808 2,067 322,957
Exchange realignment  [EHE 24,051 — 3,869 — 247 28,167
Additions RE 6,859 — 853 83 5,432 13,227
Disposals e - = (1,921) = (623) (2,544)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-IF
~NA=TH 317,204 657 35,932 891 7123 361,807
ACCUMULATED FtEREE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2012 WZE-—%tf-H 29,446 9% 15,323 675 2,164 47,702
Exchange realignment  [E{HE (992) = (570) = (45) (1,607)
Provided for the year TEERE 7,155 131 6,175 84 203 13,748
Eliminated on disposal ~ HEBHHE - — (274) — (621) (895)
Eliminated on written off ~ #i34E5 %18 — = (11) (99) = (110)
At 30 June 2013 R-E-ZF
~NA=TH 35,609 225 20,643 660 1,701 58,838
Exchange realignment B X 5% 7811 - 2,676 — 210 10,697
Provided for the year REREE 4,370 133 5,963 85 857 11,408
Eliminated on disposal ~ HEEEH3 - - (17) — (544) (561)
At 30 June 2014 RZZT-IF
~NAZTH 47,790 358 29,265 745 2,224 80,382
CARRYING VALUE BEFE
At 30 June 2014 RZZE-mE
~A=tH 269,414 299 6,667 146 4,899 281,425
At 30 June 2013 RZE-ZF
~A=TH 250,685 432 12,488 148 366 264,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. Y¥ - - BERRZE®)
(Continued)

Notes: Hiaz -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

2%, or over the terms of the
leasehold land if shorter

Leasehold improvements 20%, or over the terms of the
lease if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Office equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 15% to 33%

The freehold land and buildings represents the stadium
and the training pitch situated in Birmingham, U.K. For
the purpose of impairment review, the freehold land and
building was revalued at its opening market value as at 30
June 2014 by reference to a valuation carried out by Roma
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Based on the result
of the valuation report, no impairment loss was recognised
for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).

The freehold land and buildings were pledged to a bank to
obtain bank loan (Note 37(i)).

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the net carrying
values of the Group’s leasehold improvements, furniture
and fixtures and office equipment amounting to Nil (2013:
HK$59,000) were written off, which was mainly due to
the termination of a rental agreement with the landlord in
respect of a leased property.

)

(i)

(iii)

Ltz - BB KR ERE TR
BAVRA T ERGFTEFE

KAEELH FTHE

BF 2% A E i 2 FH
(fngsg)

HEMERE 20%RBEFH
(fnEsa)

GREEE  20%
WMAZRE  20%
& 15% = 33%

KA KERE 3 AR T AR AL R
BN EBE E RIS - FHR
BERAME  KAEELHREZ
FLEEAEE Y ERHE B
BEREXEGEMESBER TG
ERABETZHERER_-F
—HERNA=ZTRZRARTEE
b REBEHEREZER  #HE
—E-MERA=ZTHIEFEER
ERRREER(ZF =%
&)

KAEETHREFTEEM TR
FTUABS RITE R (M 37(i)) ©

REBEE_T—NMESA=+HI
FE - AEBZEAEMERE
BRREBEARBAZREZER
EFEATEL(ZE—=F:
59,0004 7t ) E#MisH - TIEE A
REEFRAEWETI2HE
e AR IEFTEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=ZLF—IFNA=1HILFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. % BERRE®)

(Continued)
The Company VAN
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
RENFEE BRREE BAERE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FET FAT FETL
COST A
At 1 July 2012 RZZ——#+A—H 477 365 808 = 1,650
Additions NE 180 — — — 180
At 30 June 2013 RZE—Z=F
~NA=TH 657 365 808 — 1,830
Additions NE — 62 83 1,950 2,095
At 30 June 2014 RZZE-NE
~NA=1H 657 427 891 1,950 3,925
ACCUMULATED RARERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2012 RIE-ZF
+H-A 9% 146 578 — 820
Provided for the year KEERE 131 73 84 — 288
At 30 June 2013 RZE—=%
~NA=1H 227 219 662 — 1,108
Provided for the year REERME 131 79 83 390 683
At 30 June 2014 RZE-MF
~NA=TH 358 298 745 390 1,791
CARRYING VALUE BEFE
At 30 June 2014 it
~NA=1H 299 129 146 1,560 2,134
At 30 June 2013 =%
~AA=1AH 430 146 146 = 722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. B ERE
The Group AEE
Player Backlog
registration contract Trademark Total
REEM BEEH 5] @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(Note (ii)) (Note (iii)) (Note (iv))
(Bt (i) (Wizt (i) (Bt (iv)
COST B
At 1 July 2012 R-_Z——F+H—H 339,592 140,903 557,993 1,038,488
Exchange realignment L (8,930) — (14,612) (23,542)
Additions NE 3,395 = - 3,395
Disposals e (55,025) — — (55,025)
At 30 June 2013 R=ZE—=FA=tH 279,032 140,903 543,381 963,316
Exchange realignment AR 27,753 — 64,634 92,387
Addition NE 6,396 — — 6,396
Disposals HE (126,000) — — (126,000)
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-MFEA=1H 187,181 140,903 608,015 936,099
ACCUMULATED R BHERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2012 R-_FE——F+F—H 308,996 140,903 517,332 967,231
Exchange realignment ERTEEES (7,378) — (13,658) (21,036)
Provided for the year REERE 24,669 — - 24,669
Eliminated on disposals HE R 3 (49,046) — — (49,046)
Impairment loss recognised BRRRERE — — 3,602 3,602
At 30 June 2013 R-_ZE—=%~A=1H 277,241 140,903 507,276 925,420
Exchange realignment B X & 27,486 — 60,339 87,825
Provided for the year AEFEE 4,786 — — 4,786
Eliminated on disposals HER (125,559) — — (125,559)
At 30 June 2014 RZZ-MFEA=+H 183,954 140,903 567,615 892,472
CARRYING VALUE REFE
At 30 June 2014 RZZE—MFSA=1H 3,227 = 40,400 43,627
At 30 June 2013 R-_ZE—=%~A=1H 1,791 — 36,105 37,896

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

HE=

22.

E—ENH=1HIFFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
The Group (Continued)

Notes:

)

(if)

(iii)

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Backlog contracts 1 year

Players’ registration based on respective players’
contracts terms from 1-5
years

Trademark Not amortised

The player registration is considered to have a useful life
ranging from 1 to 5 years and is tested for impairment at
the end of the reporting period.

Any players whom Birmingham City Football Club Plc
(“BCFC”), a subsidiary of the Company, do not consider
to be a long term part of the First Team squad and who
will therefore not contribute to future cash flows earned
by BCFC are assessed for impairment by considering
the carrying value with BCFC’s best estimate of fair value
(being post year-end sales proceeds or expected sales
proceeds) less costs to sell. No impairment was made for
the two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

Backlog contract represents the contract signed between
BCFC and the Football Association Premier League Limited
(“FA Premier”) which BCFC will have the right to receive an
annual income from FA Premier in relation to the income
arrived from television broadcastings, sponsorships, merit
amount determined by the final position at the end of the
premier league season and the facility fees determined
by the number of the matches being broadcasted by FA
Premier. The backlog contract is signed on a yearly basis
and will be renewed before the premier league season
starts each year. Due to the relegation of BCFC, the
backlog contract did not renewed.

The trademark was acquired in the business combination
of BCP, which is considered to have an indefinite useful
life and was tested for impairment as at the end of the
reporting period.

According to the valuation report prepared by Roma
Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers not connected with the Group, no impairment loss
was recognised for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013:
HK$3,602,000). The valuation was prepared based on the
income approach.

BEEE#)
KEE(E)
et -

) BB ER AT ¢

BE&aH 14
HREHEM REFEREZEH
FEI1-5FAHE

AR T

(ii) REEMZ AIEAFRER RN
FA1EEF - WRRERRETH
BRI -

EaI A A 7 Hfi B A 7] Birmingham
City Football Club Plc([BCFC]J)
TrEABREE—GBEM TS Y
BCFC HRER 2 R 2RI & 7k & 5 2K
BRIZ KRB Y#TRETE - A
X AEEEREEEBCFCH AT
BAFEABE 2 HERSRIENK
TEHA S EFTS B R E R A Z
BEGFt - BHEZ-—WER=
T—=FX NA=ZtHLEREFE
B VR RE o

(iii) & B & #) #5BCFC H Football
Association Premier League
Limited ([FA Premier)&5]24&
#) BCFC# & # B FA Premier
MKBEBEER BB HE (R
BB IR EE R 2 R ERE
) REEEA(EFA Premier &
R REHEETE ) 2 WA WEE
BHBA - BEEDRFRT LR
BE BB EMAAER - A
FRBCFCB& A& + 830 % 48 5] 18 &
B -

(iv) EZTVMRBCPZ (75 A o
B wWRAEERAFERFLE
W RS B AREITRER A o

BIREAEEGERE BT
EXGERBESERIGEA
RARRBZIGERS  REBZE
—E-—NENA=ZTALEFEMR
BERABREEBRB(ZZE—=4:
3,602,000 7% 7T ) il B8 Ty 32 R U 2
SEARE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

23. GOODWILL 23. &
HK$'000
FET
Cost DN
At 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013 and 2014 RZE——F+tA—H —T—=FK
—E—MFEARA=+H 22,185
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE
At 1 July 2012, 30 June 2013 and 2014 RZE——Ft+tA—H ZT—=FK
—ET—mFEAA=+H (22,185)

Carrying amount
At 30 June 2013 and 2014

fRmEfE

RECE—=FR_FT-—MNFA=1+H —

The goodwill is allocated to a single cash generating unit
that is the professional football operation. Goodwill was

fully impaired during the year ended 30 June 2011.

HEDOEERERIREEZE R
TELEMN HEBERBE_T——
FRA=ZTHILFEZEURE -

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 24. RHBRARZKRE
The Company

¥ N

2014 2013
—F-mE —T=

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
23 FETT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRAD » IRAKA 965,391 965,583
Less: Impairment loss recognised i BRERRERSTE (i) (965,391) (965,583)
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT /BB A ) 3R I8 (ii) 365,825 73,732
Less: Impairment loss recognised JE - BIERIREEE (iii) (276,029) (28,356)
89,796 45,376
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET BB A R 3kI8 (ii) (6,820) (6,812)
82,976 38,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE

e

ey iney
HEZZF

24.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

At 30 June 2014, an accumulated impairment
loss on investment costs of approximately
HK$965,391,000 (2013: HK$965,583,000) was noted
because the related recoverable amounts of the
investment costs with reference to the net assets
value of the respective subsidiaries were estimated
to be less than their carrying amounts.

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

24.

REBATRIZRE #)

(i)

(if)

RZZE—WFERA=1+H 8
965,391,000 L(=ZZF — =
4 1 965,583,000 7T ) Z %
BRAREREBEE T E
R FRARZZEEWBRRZ
BEFEIREKAZ HER
el & BB EHER HAREE o

& W (8 A ) BfY /B8 & &) 2 SRR
RAEE - 2R NARERE

o

i

Movements in impairment loss: (i)  RERBEZ#E
The Company
ENNE|

2014 2013
—E-lmF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REEA] 28,356 20,719
Recognised during the year FRMER 247,673 7,637
At the end of the year REER 276,029 28,356

During the year ended 30 June 2014, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$247,673,000 (2013:
HK$7,637,000) was recognised because the
recoverable amount was estimated to be less than
their carrying amounts and the possibility of the
recovery was remote.

BIEFERN: BREBBELN
247,637,000 (=& — =
% :7,637,0008 70 ) E T
R RERM UK E S EGHE
REBREE R U 2 AT RE T
j§ o
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e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

24. RMIBATZRE &)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 30 June 2014 are as follows:

Country of
incorporation Percentage of
and operation Particulars of issued equity attributable to
Name of company ERELR and paid-up capital the Company Principal activity
NAER FEER BEARBREARE AAAEGERAIL EEXRE
2014 2013
=2-mE -T--%
Directly hold
EERE
Birmingham City Plc UK GBP8,150,000 ordinary 96.64% 96.64%  Investment holding
R 8,150,000 £ X R REER
Indirectly hold
BEREE
Birmingham City UK GBP752,838 ordinary 100% 100%  Football club
Football Club Plc B 752,838 BE L BIR 32854
Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Hiet - EREBINEFRREER

Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BRFEEBERBRAE
BEEFETERDAIZA
RAMBAR - EEZRA
REEMGHBARZHE
BENRRERBNITE -

25. INVENTORIES 25. FE
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E2-lmF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Finished goods and goods for sale BURK i R SHE M 1,667 2,225

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=ZLF—IFNA=1HILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

26. EWEZERX

The Group
TEH
2014 2013
=F—@mE  ~—T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables FEUE 5 RN 19,301 93,793
Less: Impairment loss recognised B - BRERRE R (148) (106)
19,153 93,687

(i) The average credit period of the Group’s trade
receivables is 90 days (2013: 90 days) and
represents solely from the professional football

operation.

Trade receivables from the sale of player’s

registrations are received in accordance with the

terms of the related transfer agreement. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

(ii) The aging analysis of trade receivables based on

invoice date net of impairment loss is as follows:

(if)

AEERERE SRR T
FEEHARIOR(ZZE—=4F:
90K) - WENRBBHETKE
Ec

HERE M2 RUYE 5 8RR
THIRIE AR RR SR 175 58 2 1R
HR o ZNR [ 30 4 A AL 5 A BREE
BEERR

HR B B ERYE R R E S
182 EIE BN BB
T -

The Group
rEE

2014 2013
=F—@mNE ~—T-=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 30 days 30KA 7,292 84,226
31 to 90 days 31E90K 975 676
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 1,113 71
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 1,273 8,714
Over 365 days 365 KA E 8,500 —
19,153 93,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)
(iii) The movements in impairment loss during the
year including both specific and collective loss
components are as follows:

26.

FEWE SRR
(i) ERZREBRSS(EEE
RIRSAEBS)MT -

The Group
FEE
2014 2013
=F-mFE T =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At the beginning of the year REY) 106 109
Exchange realignment T 5, 58 14 (3)
Recognised during the year FRNMER 28 =
At the end of the year RF 148 106

At 30 June 2014, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$148,000 (2013: HK$106,000)
were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that none of the related
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

R-ZZE—mFEA~A=+8"
REBZEBREZERLD
148,000 (=& — =4 :
106,000 78 7t ) T3 {8 Bl & % /&
A o B ERIRE 2 FE YR K
DEEMBERE XA -
& 32 2 71 E T8 B A R FE AR
ST EUE o A5 B R
I E R A AR R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iv)

At 30 June 2014 and 2013, the analysis of trade
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
are as follows:

26. EWE SRR

RoZF—PIFE R =T = =9
A=+H RBHERAREZ
B ZERANMT :

Past due but not impaired

EAHERAEE
Neither past
due nor Less than

The Group Total impaired 60 days 61-90 days  91-365 days
b3 1) @it RAPRKHE HR60K 61290 % 91 £365X
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FBT

At 30 June 2014 RZE-MEXA=TH 19,153 8,267 1,113 — 9,773
At 30 June 2013 R=ZE-=F:A=1H 93,687 84,902 " — 8,714

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEPARRREZ EKE FER
RERBEZEP  WEL B
HAR SRACER

EEHERREZEREZK
RERETRAKERE R
EECHBILEF - RIEBG
EEER - BEEREHARL
SHEMREHRRERYE - oA
REEERWEBEAEH R
DR E R BB © AR5
% 20 488 h L S A R B (TR
Hm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

Eor the year ended 30 June 2014

AHE—

27.

=5 o4 —— H 41 Y-
E—VIFENH="1THIFFE

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND

27. e AAREREME

OTHER RECEIVABLES W FKIE
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF —T=F —E-mF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET FET FAET
Other receivables H b fE U 7008 1,975 7,113 1,500 —
Less: Impairment loss i : EERREEE
recognised (K172 (i)
(Note (i) (475) (7,112) — —
1,500 1 1,500 —
Deposits and Re RIEN IR
prepayments 37,519 15,787 4,135 681
Less: Prepayments —  J& : TARTEUIE —
non-current e ED
(Note (ii)) (B2 (i) (1,334) (83) — —
Amounts shown in MEEEMRESRE
current assets 37,685 15,705 5,635 681
Notes: Htat -
(i) The movements in the impairment loss on other receivables (i) G R H b B U GRTE 2 R (B S 1R
during the year are as follows: FE :
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mF —F—= —E-mE —F—=
HK$’°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
At the beginning of REA)
the year 7,112 6,488 — —
Recognised during FRHER
the year — 624 —_ =
Written off during F R EH
the year (6,637) — — _
At the end of the year REHL 475 7,112 — —
During the year ended 30 June 2014, an impairment HE-Z—NFSA=THILF
loss of Nil (2013: HK$624,000) on other receivables was ERN - Hih R IEEREE
recognised. The Group has individually assessed all other B(ZZ — = : 624,000 7T )
receivables and provided impairment for the amounts that BEFHR - ANEBEE @B
are considered not recoverable. BHMEWRIE - WRHERIED
IR E 2 & FRERE ©
(i) Included in prepayments are amounts of approximately (ii) RZZE—WMFEASA=1+H " B

HK$1,334,000 as at 30 June 2014 (2013: HK$83,000)
relating to sign-on fees for purchases of the players which
are classified as non-current.

KIA B 1,334,000 (=
— =4 : 83,000/ 7T) *
AR ZEBERESENER -

&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BEZ—F—ENA=THIEFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED

28. EWEIELQRINIEA

COMPANIES
Details of amounts due from related companies disclosed REFBEFZAEH(FE3RE)
pursuant to Section 161B of the predecessor Hong Kong 25 161B &1 58 2 FE W #E & A Rl 5UE
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) are as follows: EIL e
The Group AEE
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year
FAREEBRSSHE
20183 2013
== T4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat FETT FET
Sing Pao Media KRR EREEBR
Enterprises Limited ~El([RHREE])

(“Sing Pao Media”)

Sing Pao Newspaper BRI TER A A
Company Limited ([ AR T])
(“Sing Pao Newspaper”)

Life Profit Asia Limited & F|22M BBR A 7]

Skyline Global Investment Skyline Global
Limited (“Skyline”) Investment Limited

(I'Skyline |)

(ii)
(iii)

Less: Impairment loss & - BERERRIE
recognised [E518

(iv)

3R Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

#p = — &

Bl =

HENA=FHILFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED
COMPANIES (continued)

28. FEWR

BEE N T FIE %)

The Company NN |
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year
FAREERSSHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2E-NF —T-=F ZZ2-EF —_T-=F
Notes - HK$°000 HK$'000 = HK$000 HK$'000
Hiat FET TET FET TFET
Sing Pao Media P R (3 45 (i) — 5,682 5,682 5,682
Sing Pao Newspaper i R T (ii) 320 320 320 1,218
320 6,002
Less: Impairment loss  J& - BHERMBIE
recognised E548 (iv) — (5,682)
320 320
Notes: Kt

(if)

(iii)

The directors of the Company considered Sing Pao Media,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, but trading of its
shares have been suspended since 28 April 2005, and its
subsidiary, Sing Pao Newspaper (together referred to as
the “Sing Pao Group”) are related companies of the Group
as Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, a substantial shareholder of
the Company is also the key shareholder of the Sing Pao
Group.

Yeung Ka Sing, Carson, the substantial shareholder and
former director of the Company, has beneficial interests in
Sing Pao Media. The amount is unsecured, interest bearing
at 12% and repayable within one year.

Sing Pao Newspaper is an indirect subsidiary of Sing
Pao Media. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Wang Li Fei, having beneficial interests in Life Profit Asia
Limited, is a domestic partner of Mr. Yeung, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

(if)

(iii)

ARAEERR @ KBER(—HF
REER P Bz AR - HEERD
EE_ZTTRFOA_+NHE
Li2EE) REKE R R RERT
(BB RIREER])DASEZ
MERA RARAKARZEE
BRBRBIBARER 2 T2
BRER

ARBZEERRFAMEESR
HAERRREETER EmE
#3 o ZRBRAEER - 2 12% 50
BRAR—FREER -

R R T A R 1 R 2 PR R B BB
RE - ZRARBEER RER
JAREENREE

AARZEEZRRIGEEZRE
18 Wang Li Fei A& FIZa B R
RAIRHEEE R ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

e

BE—F

HENA=FHIEFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 28. EWEELQRRE®
COMPANIES (continued)
Notes: (Continued) Htaz - (&)
(iv) Movements in impairment loss during the year are as (iv) FRAZREEBERZSHNAT
follows:
The Group The Company
AEE AAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mEF =F—=%F —E-mEF =B==4F
HK$°’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET FHET FET
At the beginning of REA)
the year 5,682 4,593 5,682 4,593
Recognised for REERER
the year — 1,089 — 1,089
Written off during F R 85
the year (5,682) — (5,682) —
At the end of the year REK — 5,682 — 5,682
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no APRAEBEBERE BHE_Z
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 30 —mMESNA=F+HILEERNL
June 2014 (2013: HK$1,089,000). ERANEER(CE— =
1,089,000 7T) °
29. CASH HELD AT NON-BANK FINANCIAL 29. RIERITESHMMEBETIEHR
INSTITUTIONS &
The Group and the Company AEERERAT
Cash held at non-bank financial institutions carry interest at RIERTERBEEMFRE ESF
0.001% per annum (2013: 0.001%). M E0.001%:F B(=Z & — = F:
0.001%) °
30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30. MITEBRRASE
The Group and the Company REERERAT

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances.

Most of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars whereas the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents in the U.K are mainly
denominated in GBP.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

RERMBRRRRFEEELRER
ms > BekRSEFEHBEERAE
NERITHEER ©

RRBZREDELMEEEEER
NABTREN  MARBEREE 2R
ERREEFEHETENRERE

fif ©

RITR LT RRITERN R LAZH
AR BREUFB, o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

31. TRANSFER FEE PAYABLES

31. ENEEE

The Group The Company
TEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—NEF —T—= —E—-NEF ==
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHT
Transfer fee payables [ENEEE
— Within one year — —FR 3,802 8,428 — —
— Due after one year — —15%|Hf 704 — — —
4,506 8,428 — —
All transfer fee payables are stated at amortised cost that FERNEEBIRENTERE 2#
approximately equal to their fair value. SHAN I BR ©

32. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

32. ENEZKRX
ENESERZ BRI -

The Group The Company
rEE AN

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—NmEF —E—=F —E—NEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET FHET TET
Within 30 days 30 KA 14,537 15,371 — —
31 to 90 days 31 290K 1,650 2,016 — —
91 days to 180 days 91 = 180K 57 597 — —
181 days to 365 days 181 & 365K 10,040 10,721 — —
26,284 28,705 — —

The Group normally receive credit periods from suppliers

averaging 90 days.

AEE—RAEHERHEGEFIH0XK
ZIEEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BEZ—F—ENA=THIEFE

33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

33. EEFREREMENRE

The Group The Company
REH RAF
2013 2013
=== =E==4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEor F&T
Accruals (Note (i) FEETFRIB (Mt i)
Other tax and social HAh 18 K&
security HERE
Agent’s fee payables  EfELEAER
(Note (ii)) (Hfazii)

Less: Amount due after & - R—F & E|H 2

one year FIH
— Agent’s fee — B ANER
(Note (ii)) (Bt ii)
Shown in current R EEETR
liabilities
Notes: Htat -
(i) Included in accruals are amounts of approximately (i) Bt EBEEHRGE=HS

HK$5,353,000 (2013: HK$4,996,000) relating to accrued
directors’ remuneration.

(i) At 30 June 2014, included in other payables represents
the agent's fee paid for the purchase of football players
during the year and of HK$521,000 was due after one year
according to the transfer agreement of players (2013: Nil).
The directors of the Company consider the amounts in
accrual and other payables, both current and non-current,
were approximate to their fair value as at 30 June 2014 and
2018.

2 3% 18 #95,353,0005%8 L(= &
—=%F : 4,996,000/ 7T) °

R-ZZTE—MmMESA=1+H " Hit
ENREREFAREERESX
NZz@&LEANER - &+521,000
BITIRBHREZEBSHERN—F
BEHH(ZZ—=F: &) - AR
RIZEERA  RERIEREEST
RIEREAEMNRIESEER =
TNER_T-—=FA=1+
BZ AFERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

34. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS

34. ELEE AN

The Group The Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —F= —F-mE  —F=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FHET FET FAET
To be released: A3 Bl 2 FRIH
— within one year — —FR 752 672 — —
— after one year — —Fi% 22,298 20,600 — —
23,050 21,272 — —

Deferred capital grants relate to the redevelopment of the
football stadium located in Birmingham, U.K. The grant has
been treated as a deferred grant and is being amortised in
line with the depreciable assets to which it relates.

35. AMOUNTS DUE TO FORMER

BEEABERT BB ERMNEE
BAMZ RS ER - BRTIDRIEE

TR BRHEBRBAZAITIHEEE

35. BNRESEMIEA

DIRECTORS
The Group The Company
rEH RAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—NmEF —T—= —E—-NEF —=—=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FHT
Amounts due to former JEfTATEEZIA ¢
directors:
Hui Ho Luek, Vico FrE R 5,198 5,198 5,198 5,198
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson 5% 5,582 — 5,582 —
10,780 5,198 10,780 5,198
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZERBREER 2R RARENR
demand. B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

36.

37.

HENA=FHIEFE

DEFERRED INCOME

36. EZLEWA

The Group REE
The movements of deferred income for the years ended 30 BREWARBE-_T—NONER=-FT
June 2014 and 2013 were as follows: —=FANA=ZTHIEFEZEHHNT ¢
Matching Commercial
receipt income Total
REUWA [GELON “at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT
At 1 July 2012 R-ZE——F+A—H 26,325 2,054 28,379
Exchange realignment PE 5 S (590) (57) (647)
Additions NE 22,359 2,167 24,526
Recognised as revenue R AW (26,424) (2,064) (28,488)
At 30 June 2013 RZZT—=FA=1+H 21,670 2,100 23,770
Exchange realignment FEE 5 2K 2,471 171 2,642
Additions NE 25,086 23,557 48,643
Recognised as revenue R AW S (27,345) (25,210) (52,555)
At 30 June 2014 R=-Z—WFXA=+H 21,882 618 22,500
i
BORROWINGS 37. fBE
The Group The Company
REME ¥ YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—MOFE —T-=—F ZZ-—MNF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FETT
Secured bank loans BHHEBIRITERK
(Note (i)) (K12 (i) 2,077 3,137 — —
Unsecured — other loans KR — Hih &%
(Notes (ii) & (iii)) (HTEE (ii) % (iii) 132,053 177,330 43,885 97,418
134,130 180,467 43,885 97,418
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
T 45

s — = 5 g 1 LA
BE—F—ENA=FHIFFE

37. BORROWINGS (continued) 37. BE#»#)
At 30 June 2014 and 2013, total current and non-current RIEBE—OFER_FT—=F A=+
bank loans and other borrowings were repayable as B RBRIERBRITERREME
follows: BRBARNTFHEES !
The Group The Company
rEH /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—BE-@mE —T= —BE-mE —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FAET FET FAET
Carrying amounts AEZBIRMEE
repayable:
On demand or within JEER—F A
one year 133,296 178,442 43,885 97,418
More than one year, —&FpE B
but not exceeding BENN
two years 590 1,807 — —
More than two years, MEAE -8
but not exceeding AFLAA
five years 244 218 — —
134,130 180,467 43,885 97,418

Less: Amounts due within  J& - JREVE EFHIN—
one year shown in FRNEIEZ 7RI8
current liabilities (133,296)  (178,442) (43,885) (97,418)

Amounts shown under FIEIEMEI BIEZ

non-current liabilities I 834 2,025 — —

Notes: Htat -

(i) At 30 June 2014 and 2013, the secured bank loans (i) RZZE—MER=ZT—=F"A
carried interest at floating rates LIBOR+1.5% per annum =+H BEMBITERTAE
and are repayable within one year. The bank loans were HERTTRER S + EFER1.5%5F
secured against the Group’s land and buildings in the B WER—FAEE- - R1TTE
U.K amounting to approximately HK$269,414,000 (2013: AIYAARE B R B 2 £ 3 2 12
HK$250,685,000) and by unlimited multilateral guarantees F49269,414,000 8 0(=ZF—=
given by certain of its subsidiaries in the Group. 4 : 250,685,000 7T ) * LA R A

SEETHERBMEMRZ ER
LB FERIEEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=ZLF—IFNA=1HILFE

37. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

At 30 June 2014, included in the unsecured other loans
was approximately HK$16,856,000 (2013: HK$14,412,000)
loaned from iMerchant’s Asia Limited (“iMerchant”), a
subsidiary of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Energy”). Yau Yan Min, Raymond, a former independent
non-executive director of the Company and Chan Wai
Keung, a former non-executive director of the Company are
both executive directors of Chinese Energy. The amounts
represented a principal of approximately HK$10,000,000
(2013: HK$10,000,000) and accrued interest of
approximately HK$6,856,000 (2013: HK$4,412,000). The
loan is overdue and carries interest at fixed rates of 0.5%
per annum and penalty interest at 2% per month.

At 30 June 2014, the remaining unsecured other loans were
loaned from independent third parties. These loans were
either overdue or repayable within one year and carried
interest ranging from interest free to 30% per annum
(including penalty interest at 2% per month).

On 25 February 2014, the Company and the lender, China
Water Industry Group Limited, came to a settlement on the
outstanding loan balance of HK$60,275,000 by accepting
HK$27,000,000 in full and final settlement of all liabilities
and obligations. Upon settlement, the Company recognised
a gain of approximately HK$33,275,000.

37.

B8 ®)

Kt

(if)

(iii)

(#)

RZZT—MEA=1+A " &K
HEAM BB IER B iMerchant s
Asia Limited ([iMerchant] -
EERRERAERABEER
RERDIHBRAR)ZERD
16,856,000/ (=& — =&
14,412,000 7T ) °© AN A & Z Al
B IRTERDBRRARQA
ZAERITESRERIGAEER
BERZHITE S - ZAREHEA
% #710,000,0008 TT(Z & — =
4 110,000,000 7t ) & & 5T F
B #96,856,000/8 L(=Z T — =
& 14,412,000/ L) - BEFRE B
B WIREEFFE0.5% T B K
BAFR2%HEE S

T-NEASA=1+A - ﬁ%T
zmw% SRR E T
:ﬁZiﬁw &%%—fw’tﬂﬂﬁi@,ﬁﬂ

HER—FERNEE WREERE
%ﬁ%m%ﬁWa%EEHﬂ
K2%EER) -

RZE—NEF-_A=+HHB "
RARRBEEAFBEKEEE
ERARBRAEZEERLES
60,275,000 % T #E K TR - =
tﬁ%im%%u? 000,000% 7T A K.

REEFMBERBEREE - AR

medwzmom%ﬁo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

HENA=FHILFE

38. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

38.

BNEEHE

The Group The Company
AEHE ¥ /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF-mE —FT-= —F-pmEFE —F-=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET FET
Amounts due to directors: JEftEEFIA :
Ma Shui Cheong (Note (i) SIS (H1:2(i) = 544 = 544
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson e
(Note (ii)) (HaE (i)
(resigned on (R=ZZT—mWF=A
4 February 2014) /b H &) — 182,808 — 5,582
— 183,352 — 6,126
Less: Amounts included in & @ st AREBIBEZ
current liabilities HIF = (544) = (544)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE — 182,808 — 5,582
Notes: Hiat -

The amount is unsecured, interest free and was fully settled
during the year.

Included in the amounts due to Yeung Ka Sing, Carson
(“Mr. Yeung”) are Nil (2013: HK$177,226,000) which
is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed term of
repayment. All other amounts are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand

On 20 December 2013, the Company, BCFC and Mr. Yeung
entered into the Deed of Novation, pursuant to which Mr.
Yeung agreed to accept the liabilities of BCFC under
the Debt amouting to HK$193,500,000 (approximately
GBP15,320,000) being taken up by the Company.

On the same day, the Company and Mr. Yeung entered into
the Debt Capitalisation Agreement, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to capitalise the Debt of HK$193,500,000
owed by the Company to Mr. Yeung by issuing debt
convertible bond (“Debt CB”) to Mr. Yeung. The details of
the Debt CB are set out in Note 42.

Mr. Yeung resigned as director of the Company on 4
February 2014 and the remaining amount due to him was
reclassified to amounts due to former directors, Note 35.

(if)

ZRAREEN  RERERNF
WEZEE -

BNBRBA(HBEEDZREA
T(=E— =4 177,226,000
JL) 0 EAAEER - £ BRI
EETERY - TAEMIEA
IR - B RAREENREE -

RZZB—=F+=-A=+H &K
AR BCFCRIBELEETLER
EEZE B BEERERE
WA Q B A EBCFC R B IE
T4 ££4193,500,000 7% T (8%
R #%715,320,000 588) 2 B fE o

FAB - NAREGEETLES
BEAR R B ARFRRE
BREARRERIGREZ ZE
7%5193,500,000% 7T © A =X A& A
BREEBITEBAIRRES([E
BAlRES ) - EFARRE
FZ BRI TE42 -

BEAERZZT—WOFE - AMA
AERRREE  ERNEZHRBEE
PEAENAMESHE W
35
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

e

BE—F—ENA=FHILFE

39.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 39.

The Group

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year were as follows:

ELERBRE

EEE
REAMBRARERZEERES
EZEARBHRAFAZBBHMT :

Revaluation Revaluation

of land and of intangible

building assets Total
B B
T RIEF BREEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
At 1 July 2012 R-Z——F+A=+—8H 32,664 10,572 43,236
Exchange realignment PE 5 % (767) (229) (996)
Effect of a change in tax FREFHZTE
rate (2,513) (813) (3,326)
Credited to consolidated st A4REIEBER
statement of profit Hitv 2R
or loss and other
comprehensive income (7583) (865) (1,618)
At 30 June 2013 RN_E—=FA=+H 28,631 8,665 37,296
Exchange realignment ME 5 S B 3,346 1,013 4,359
Effect of a change in DS L2
tax rate (1,275) (386) (1,661)
At 30 June 2014 R=ZZ—WMFA=+H 30,702 9,292 39,994

At 30 June 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$155,208,000 (2013: HK$155,208,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R-ZE—MFENA=+H  AEEAH
KB IBE 1847 155,208,000 7 7T

— T — =4 : 155,208,000/ 7T ) Al
FREE SR A ) o BB SR 2R F 7
EELATER - MU LA R TE A8
RIECEHIBEE - BRESIET &R
4hes o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

o — =

Bl =

40.

—09FNHA =1 HIFFE

SHARE CAPITAL 40. R
Number
of shares Amount
RHEE 28
Notes HK$'000
Hiat TET
Ordinary share of FIEE0.01 BTz TRk
HK$0.01 each
Authorised: ETE
At 1 July 2012 and RZE—=—F+tA—BRk
2013 June 2013 —Z—=F,H=tH 10,000,000,000 100,000
Increase on 5 February 2014 R-E—NFE_FRH &M (i) 40,000,000,000 400,000
At 30 June 2014 RZE—MFESA=TH 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR :
At 1 July 2012 and RZE—=—FtA—Bk
30 June 2013 —Z—=F,H=tH 3,887,753,400 38,878
Issue of shares upon: BUATIEE BTG ¢
— placement of shares — ERERHD (ii) 1,260,000,000 12,600
— upon conversion of — BRI BRES
convertible bonds (i) 3318, 3138, 318 3,333
At 30 June 2014 RZZE—WFEA=+H 5,481,086,733 54,811

Notes:

Wiz :

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

On 5 February 2014, pursuit to ordinary resolution passed
of the extraordinary general meeting of the Company, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$100,000,000 to HK$500,000,000 by the creation
of an additional 40,000,000,000 new shares.

On 5 February 2014, the Company completed the
placement of 1,260,000,000 ordinary shares at an issue
price of HK$0.05. The net proceed of the placement was
approximately HK$62,050,000 and will be used for general
working capital and the general improvement of the
Group’s liquidity position.

The First CB was partially converted into 333,333,333

shares of the Company on 21 February 2014.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZZE—WE-_ARE &R
RAARKEIRRAE LR
BrEBRBR BAER
40,000,000,000 B # B& 15 © A2
A] 2 7% 7 A& 7K 8 100,000,000 7
JCHE AN ZE 500,000,000 77T ©

R-ZFE—WFE_ARB KA
Al IEEITEOSB LR E
1,260,000,000 fx & i@k - iLEE
TH P 15 ;IEDF FE 49 62,050,000 7
THRAE—REEES R KK
EXREFZTEE SR ©

F-ABMREFER_T—HF
—RAZ+—BHHEBRALRAT
Z 333,333,333 iz f& 15 ©

FRABRTZ2HRORAETE
HERZHERNZFARSER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M AR

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE-F-MFEAF=AHLFE

41. RESERVES

(a)

4. f#%E
The Group (a) *KEH
Convertible
Share  Share option Capital  Translation bonds Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TARES
RiVEE  ERERE ERfik BERE e iR szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TAT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(Note (i)) (Note (i)~ (Note (iii))  (Note (iv)) (Note (v))
wam)  WEm) W) WEW) (BEy)
At 1 July 2012 RZE-ZEtA-B 1182593 1,497 6,510 (12,714) —  (1,147,229) (19,343)
Total comprehensive  AFE2ARTEE
expenses for the year - - — (304) - (118,760) (119,064)
Transfer to reserve REANERERRS
for value of share B2k
options lapsed — (1,497) — — — 1,497 —
At 30 June 2013 RZE-ZE5f
=l 1,132,593 - 6,510 (13,018) — (1,264,492 (138,407)
Total comprehensive ~ AEE2ARTLE
expenses for the year - - — (1,776) — (153,114) (154,890)
Loss on deed of novation  fEHE BLEFE — - - — — (6,683) (6,683)
Issue of convertible bonds /TR Es - - — = 360,500 — 360,500
Issue of shares upon: ~ SEATIRR E{TARA -
— placement of shares ~ — EERH 49,450 = - = = - 49,450
— conversion of —ERTARES
convertible bonds 6,667 — — - (10,000) — (3,333)
At 30 June 2014 RZB-MERA
=tA 1,188,710 - 6,510 (14,794) 350,500 (1,424,289) 106,637

£ # Annual Report 2014

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

41. RESERVES (continued) 41. ﬁﬁ(fé)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) AREBEE)
Notes: Kt -
(i) Share premium (i) R 43 % 8
The application of the share premium account is BB EAXRAS
governed by applicable regulations of the Cayman HEERARMEE -
Islands.
(ii) Share option reserve (i) BRERE
The share option reserve represents the fair value BEREREEEBAQR
at the respective grant dates in respect of the 1 AR TR B AR 4 2
outstanding share options of the Company. HEEZ AFEE -
(iii) Capital reserve (iii) ERGEE
Capital reserve represents the waiver of amounts BRRERBEENAR
due to a major shareholder. RFA °
(iv)  Translation reserve (iv) B X &
Translation reserve is arising from the translation b S R EE A B REFIN
of foreign currencies in overseas subsidiaries from M B R Rz I (Thee &
its functional currency to the Group’s presentation BI)ZEAEEENES -
currency.
(v) Convertible bonds reserve (v) AR IR 1B 25 1
The convertible bonds reserve represents the AR EHFREEEAR AR
amount unexercised convertible bonds issued by FTE1T 2 RATIE AT AR (E
the Company. HFEF o
(b) The Company (b) AAFH
Convertible
Contribution Share  Share option Capital bonds  Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES
BARE RieE  BRERE BRfE 4] ZiHE @it
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$§ 000
AT AT T AT AT FAT AT
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (ii)
(Wn) W) (W)
At 1 duly 2012 R-E--£+f-A 21 113259 1,497 6,510 (144883 (82.082)
Total comprehensive ~ AEF2RARTLE
expenses for the year - — — — — (69,333) (69,333)
Transfer toreserve for — HiEAMEREEESE
value of share options A Z ke
lapsed - - (1,497) - - 1,497 -
At 30 June 2013 RZE-ZF5f
=48 201 1132503 - 6,510 — (1312719 (151415)
Total comprehensive  AFE2ERRER
expenses for the year — — — — — (296,793) (296,793)
Issue of convertible bonds /TR - - - - 360,500 - 360,500
Issue of shares upon: ~ SEATIRR E{TAA -
— placement of shares ~ — &R - 49,450 - - - - 49,450
— conversion of —ERTARES
convertible bonds — 6,667 — - (10,000) — (3,333)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-MERA
=tH 22,201 1,188,710 — 6,510 350500 (1,609,512) (41,591)
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

Do —
BE—F

41.

42,

E—ENA=FHILFE

RESERVES (continued) M. f#E&m
(b) The Company (Continued) (b) AATE)
Notes: Htaz -
(i) Contributed surplus (i) A BER
The contributed surplus represents the excess of BMABBRIEREEBEER
the fair value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant Fr Uk B B B A ) A S {E £
to the group reorganisation over the nominal value RARR/RBRZENE A
of the shares of the Company issued in exchange AT Z RO EEMRE
therefor. AR o
Under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the RRASHSARNE(Z
Cayman lIslands, the contributed surplus account T—=F(Ez:]) ' KAA
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company AIfEE TER T ABAR
under certain circumstances. BRER A 2 SRIBAAR R AE
DIk °
(ii) Capital reserve (i) EXf#E
Capital reserve represents the waiver of amounts RN AN PN
due to a major shareholder. KA ©
(iii)  Convertible bonds reserve (iii) AR & 5 e
The convertible bonds reserve represents the AR E S R TE A A Al
amount unexercised convertible bonds issued by FrE1T 2 RATIE AT AR (B
the Company. HERE o
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 42. ARRES
First CB Second CB Debt CB Total
E—ABRR E_ABRR B AR
(e & BEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 July 2013 R-ZE—=F
+tH—H — — = =
Issue of convertible BATARRES
bonds 50,000 125,000 193,500 368,500
Cost of issue BATRR A (1,500) (2,500) (4,000) (8,000)
Conversion to shares ¥R A% (10,000) — — (10,000)
At 30 June 2014 RZZT—MENA
=+H 38,500 122,500 189,500 350,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

42. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The principle terms of the convertible bonds are as follows:

First CB
E—ABRRES

Second CB
E_ARRES

42. TBRRESH )
AR EL Y T B

BT

Debt CB
R RRES

Maturity date Z|EA A

Principal amount
Interest rate P
Conversion price (&

Conversion period & H3

4 February 2016
—E—REF
—AmA
HK$50,000,000
50,000,000 /7T
Zero

=

HK$0.03
0.03% 7T

5 February 2014 to

4 February 2016
—T-mE—R
AHEZZT—RF

4 February 2016
—E—RF
—AmA
HK$125,000,000
125,000,000/8 7T
Zero

HK$0.03
0.038 7T

5 February 2014 to

4 February 2016

4 February 2016
—E-REF
—AmA
HK$193,500,000
193,500,000 8 7T
Zero

HK$0.03
0.03% 7T

5 February 2014 to

4 February 2016

—H@mH

—E-NF_A —ET—NWFE_—A
AHE-ZT—XF HHEEZE-_Z—F
—_AMmA —H@mH

All three CBs are not redeemable and are required to
be mandatorily converted into share capital. The CBs
are accordingly classified as equity in the consolidated
financial statements.

First CB

On 5 February 2014, the Company issued a zero coupon
convertible bond (“First CB”) of principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 to U-Continent Holdings Limited, an
independent third party (“U-Continent”).

On 21 February 2014, HK$10,000,000 First CB was
converted into 333,333,333 ordinary shares of the
Company.

At 30 June 2014, HK$40,000,000 First CB was outstanding.

FTB =R Al A (R 5535 1 A] B 2] 30 75
58 Il BB R SIS o 52 5 P AR (B 54
fER A MR T DRSS

F—AERES
R-ZE—ME_FAA > KRFM
¥ 37 5 = /5 U-Continent Holdings
Limited ([U-Continent]) 27" & %8
#450,000,000/8 T 2 TR B AR
BEH([E -k ES])

R—ZE—WmWE_A=-_+—8"
10,000,00078 Jt Z % — a] # % & %
O 8@ 5 333,333,333 IX AN A & 3@

J%

R—ZZE—WmWFANA=+ A8
40,000,000/ 7T 2 % — Al R IR (& 5
H AR E R o

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S AR A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE—F—WFENA=THILFE

42. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Second CB

On 5 February 2014, the Company issued a zero
coupon convertible bond (“Second CB”) in two tranches
to the principal amount of HK$125,000,000 (as to
HK$105,000,000 under the first tranche and HK$20,000,000
under the second tranche) to U-Continent. At 30 June
2014, the Second CB was fully outstanding.

Debt CB

On 20 December 2013, the Company and Mr. Yeung
agreed to capitalise the debt owed by the Company by
issuing a zero coupon convertible bond (“Debt CB”) of
principal amount of HK$ 193,500,000 to Mr Yeung. At 30
June 2014, the Debt CB was fully outstanding.

The directors note that allegations of dealing with
property known or believed to represent the proceeds of
an indictable offence during the period 2001 and 2007
have been made against the Group’s major shareholder,
Mr. Yeung by the Hong Kong police. Mr. Yeung was
convicted on the offences in March 2014 and the directors
understand that an appeal will be lodged by him with the
courts in Hong Kong. The Debt CB was derived from the
Deed of Novation and Debt Capitalisation Agreement in
which certain amounts due to Mr. Yeung from a subsidiary
of the Company was restructured. Details of the Deed of
Novation can be found in the Circular of the Company
dated 17 January 2014. The Hong Kong Department
of Justice wrote to the legal adviser of the Company
on 24 September 2014 confirming that its position on
the restructuring remained the same after Mr. Yeung’s
conviction in March 2014 and considered not raising an
objection to the restructuring exercise announced on 17
January 2014 and completed on 5 February 2014.

42,

AR ES e
FoAmRES
RZZ—NF=RAR ' ARRID At
7] U-Continent 21748 %8 125,000,000
7 7t (5 — #it & 105,000,000 7 7T M
25 —#t 520,000,000 L) 2 ZEE 8
R ES (BB ES]) - ©
—E—FENA=+H " IEE=A
BRERE WA ER o

B AR ES

RZB-—=F+ZHA=+RH ' ARQ7A
RiEEREBEERMEARBER ZE
% ARAARRBMBEEETRE
193,500,000 8 7t 2 TR B Al # %
BER((EBAIBRKRES]) RZZ
—MENA=ZTH  FBEEEAIRE
BHF i ARER o

EXIR BRAERERAKEZ
FTERRBAENR_TET—E_ZTZT
T FHREEEE MEB B ER R
RFFITBEHE - BEER-F
—ME=AWHAEEERRYL B
AREBRER AR L L3 - B
AMRESFHEFREERBERERE
B ITE - ERARRINERA]
NGB EEZETRHACESEA -
BEREBRIE 2 FIFHNARE A H
R-F-—MF-AtTEHZAENK-
BERRAR _ZE-—NOFAH —+m
BERARBERER  BREEE
R-F—UF= ARWHSERKILIEE
HERAZIIGHEFTE BTN
E-—ME-—RA+LHEM AR
Z-WHFE-ARAHTRCEERER
-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=LF—IFNA =1 HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The purpose of the Scheme is providing incentives
rewards to full-time employees and consultants of
the Group in recognition of their contribution to the
Group.

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the directors
may, at their absolute discretion, invite full-time
employees of the Group including executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and consultants (the “Eligible Persons”) to take up
options to subscribe for shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
on the exercise of options granted and to be
granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant to each of the Eligible Persons shall not
exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of
the Company in issue unless (i) a shareholders’
circular is dispatched to the shareholders; (ii) the
shareholders approve the grant of the options
in excess of the limit referred to herein; and (iii)
the relevant Eligible Persons and their associates
abstain from voting on the resolution.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to
the Eligible Persons by letter in such form as the
board of directors may from time to time determine
and shall remain open for acceptance by the
Eligible Persons concerned for a period of 28 days
from the date upon which it is made, provided that
no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the
10th anniversary of the adoption date or after the
Scheme has been terminated.

43. LA+ 2FIE

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

itz B ER KRS Mk O#E
HAKEELERZAEE R
BkfE B R AR o

E=AEXAERRZRR
T 2RENERFAKEZE
BEE(BRARRHEEM
MEARZHITES) REM
(BEBRALDEWERE
IARBEBRAD °

BEARR A& IR E AR
T2 P MR TR A &
T AT BEZE T AT 2 IR1D 42
NS HRBARR T TREE BT
AR A B EL30% ©

BERRAERALREAY
ZEM12{EA 8E - BE&R
HESTFRE2BRERRE
EATE R s RTTE 2 B )
BTEMmMEHTRE T#EITZ
R BB SHBAARE 3
TIRABEA% - BRIE(NE™
BIR B B BRI ¢ (i) R
AR M BB AN Tt RE 2
BB R(i)BHESERA
TREBBATHRBRARER
MERILE °

ROBREZZNARESS
ARETERE <A KTA
BRALRIEE - TaERA
TRAIRELDRE L B B 28
BHRAER  EZHTER
Ry B B RE S 10 B SR 18 3%
FTEIAR IR o
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

o
BE—F

HENA=FHIEFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1
is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an
option. An option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the Eligible
Persons together with the said consideration of
HK$1 is received by the Company.

The exercise price for shares under the Scheme
may be determined by the directors at its absolute
discretion but in any event will not be less than the
highest of:

(a) The closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must
be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in daily quotations sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) nominal value of shares.

Unless otherwise in the terms of the Scheme, an
option may be exercised any time during the period
commencing on the expiry of six calendar months
after the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be
determined and notified by the board of directors
to each grantee, but in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of option but subject to
the early termination of the Scheme.

43.

RS <2 E @)

(vi)

(vii)

EMBRER AR AR
BTz AR EREAN
B - HARREERAERA
TIEARE Z KB R
BN - &R Lt 1 BT HIE -
AR R ST BEMR -

Zat 8 T 21T EN BE
E2RBBETE - ERERIE
ATPAEERTIIREE

(a) RELBHM(BERE
XA e ARE
RETFIRD 2 T E

(b) EEFHAHMAAE
EERBIAE AR
ERMIIEN ZFH
WifE &

(c) MfhmE-

BRIFAATBIZ IR B A ME
7 R A T 5 P R AR A AR AR
RERHRERMAZ BHERN
BEEAEREEEESETE R
BABAERAZ A HRE A
BERFTT(E - HERMEMBER T
SERBRAER N B B
104 - XA IR IR R L ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

o — =

Bl =

43.

—09FNHA =1 HIFFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 43.

The following table shows the movements in the Company’s
share options during the years ended 30 June 2014 and
2013:

LU AR ¥ 2 fRE (4
TRERBE_ZT-OFR_FT—=
FRAB=THILFEARRABREZ
2

Number of options outstanding

RMTERREHE
Lapsed At 30 June Exercise
At 1 July during 2013 price
Category Date of grant 2012 the year and 2014  Exercise Period per share
R-Z-=%
R=2-—=% R-2-RmE
55l Rit A tB—-H FRXN®  ASA=TH &S BRITEE
Directors: HK$
Bz . BT
Steven McManaman 21 August 2007 2,089,720 (2,089,720) — 21 August 2007 1.0777
(resigned on 2 June to 20 August
2012) 2017
Steven McManaman eS8 o3 —ZTHENA
(R=ZF—=%xA NE=1+—8 —t+-B%
Z HEHE) —E—tF
NA=TH
Other employees 7 June 2007 25,076,636  (25,076,636) — 7 June 2007 to 0.4786
6 June 2017
Hitufg 8 —TELF —TELF
NAEHE NAtEZE
“EtF
~NARAE

27,166,356  (27,166,356)

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme of the
Company, the outstanding share options granted on 7 June
2007 were adjusted from 24,000,000 shares to 25,076,636
shares and the exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.5
to HK$0.4786, and the outstanding share options granted
on 21 August 2007 were adjusted from 2,000,000 shares to
2,089,720 shares and the exercise price was adjusted from
HK$1.126 to HK$1.077 as a result of the completion of the
open offer of the Company made during the period.

All outstanding share options were all lapsed during the
year ended 30 June 2013.

EHEAARIRERETZ AFEET
B+ IRIEARD AR ARAE T B 2 15K
R-EZTLFARNALBREZRITE
8% i% # E Fh 24,000,000 f% % 17 58 2
% 25,076,636 &% 7 * ITEERIE
HO5BTTHEE0.47868 7T * MR
—EELENA -+ -BEEZRTT
{F B AXAE E B 2,000,000 P& A% 17 78 2
£2,089,720 R 17 - MATEEEE B
1.126 B TLHHEE1.077 8T °

HE_T—=FA=+HLFE"
FTERITHEERED 2R -

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE

HE—

44.

45.

=
=S
=

DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, the Group

deregistered its interest in certain inactive subsidiaries and

recognised a net gain on deregistration of subsidiaries of

HK$419,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

44,

HEERTHEQR

RBE-T—WEAA=TA LMK
FER AREREBRERETE
ERWBATZERYESRBE =
T-MEAA=ZTALFEZGAR
R R At 2 M R R SRR
B30I B A 7 2 Meas F 4 419,000 7%

JT °©

HK$'000
T/ETT

Deregistered liabilities of subsidiaries S EMB AR ZAE
— Income tax payable — EFTER (419)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries B SHE B A Rl 2 W (419)

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(i)

(if)

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the
finance cost charged on other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years of approximately
HK$18,148,000 remained unpaid and was included
in borrowings and amounts due to directors (2013:
HK$25,006,000).

During the year ended 30 June 2014, Nil interest
income on amounts due from related companies
remained unpaid and was included in amounts due
from related companies (2013: HK$1,089,000).

On 20 December 2013, the Company and Mr.
Yeung entered into a debt capitalisation agreement,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to capitalise
the debt owed by the Company to Mr. Yeung to the
amount of HK$193,500,000, through the issue of
convertible bonds.

45. FEFHRERF

(i)

(if)

(iii)

REE=T—NFA=+H
IEFE - REARAENEZHE
B2 M EEWER 2 B K
7N #718,148,0007% JT 43 & 2
- WEt AEERENESER
H(ZZ&— =4 : 25,006,000
BIT) °

REE-_ZT—MEA=+H
IWEFE - BRI R E A B3
B2 HEWAMARZT - W
TARKEEQRFE(ZE
— =% :1,089,000/87T) °

RNZE—=F+=-A=+H"
PiN/NG LR et o VAT B 8= W
bt - Bt - ARRIREA
REARRRIERIG R E 2% E
% AARBERETALE
193,500,000 7 7T 2 A] # ik f&
g‘jéo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

#E—

46.

==

POFENF =1 HIFFE
COMMITMENTS 46. &I
(i) Operating lease arrangements (i) REBHORH
The Group as lessee A EEERAFEA
The Group leases certain premises and motor AEERBLERNLHEE
vehicles under operating lease arrangements. ETMERSE - HEZTM
Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from three AN FI3ELF o NG E I HE
to five years. The Group does not have an option REEHRERRFEEREER
to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the BEZIERIERE - RIEHR - K
lease period. At the end of the reporting period, the SERETAREELEE N2
Group’s total future minimum lease payments under ARHEHSBEOAT !
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 2,629 2,459
After one year but within five years —FEERAFER 2,383 3,644
5,012 6,103
(ii)  Capital commitment (i)  EAXEE
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—=-@mFE -—_T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted HEEDE  BERKEDE]
for but not provided in the HERNERE T RER P A
consolidated financial statements RZ B
in respect of purchase of
property, plant and equipment — 5,165

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 1R B &35 Bk iZ i A BR A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=ZLF—IFNA=1HILFE

47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 47. HARAEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following contingent liabilities:

(i) Player transfer costs

Under the terms of certain contracts with other
football clubs in respect of the player transfers,
additional player transfer cost would become
payable if certain specific conditions are met.
The maximum amount not provided that could be
payable in respect of the transfers up to 30 June
2014 was approximately HK$15,640,000 ( equivalent
to GBP1,185,000). At the end of the reporting period
and up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, HK$5,266,000 (equivalent to
GBP399,000) of these amounts have crystallised.

(i) Claim from a former director against the
Company
On 10 May 2013, the former director, Mr. Lee Yiu
Tung (the “Claimant”) filed a claim in the Labour
Tribunal of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”) for unpaid wages, wages in
lieu of notice and expenses paid on behalf of
the Company up to the amount of approximately
HK$1,484,000. The Company made a counterclaim
against the Claimant on 29 May 2013 in respect of
wages paid to the Claimant for the months from July
to October 2012 up to the amount of HK$240,000 in
which the Claimant was absent from his office and
reimbursements of expenses paid to the Claimant
during 2010 to 2012 totaling HK$2,000,000 for
business/projects not related to the Company. On
4 June 2013, both parties agreed that the case
would be transferred to the High Court in HKSAR
for judgment. The Company have obtained legal
advice in respect of the merits of the case and the
directors of the Company are confident that they
have a strong defense in this action and therefore,
no provision for this claim have been made.

RBEEF AEEEUTRAA

% :

(i) REEEEH
BEMRKEESEAMKE
RN 2 ETAH 2GR W
FesTEHEGRE  AEN
BHINREHSER - BHEZ
T—MENAZ+HAAER
HerNmEuRBEE &S
X I %) 515,640,000 JT
(#8 % 721,185,000 £ ) ©
RIERRRBEZSGRE
MISRERBIERH - ZEXK
18 25,266,000 7% Jt(#8 & R
399,000 H ) B L EH -

(i) HEEEEALRRHEBAR

R=ZZE—=FRA+H"H
EETRRAE(HRAD
MBS R TRE(E S
BEDLEEHERIREL S
B OBRERRF REFER
REAQRBZMzRAZEELD
1,484,000 7T ° AR AR

T——FAA-THARBER
ARRERBRZR BR-ZT—=
FLtAZ+AMBERARLE
HERE)ENREAZIE
= 240,000 BT KRR ZF —
BEF_E-_FREERAD
AR ¥/ HEENHRER
AZHEZ 8 A 2,000,000
BL - R-ZT—=FAMN
B #HEREBRGRES
BRESEER AR o KAH

ERMBREKINEE 2 EZEE
R RRAFREFRERZFLER

BLEFRARIEL B s - i
R R RIE LB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BE—F

48.

o E

PIENA =+ HIFFZE

RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

48. BELTRBERERS

In addition to a related party balances detailed in (a) B 4r & BE 15 =Rk & M £ 28 -
the consolidated financial statements and Notes 28, 35 K% 38 il sFil 2 B & 75 45
35 and 38, respectively, the Group entered into the FRON - FN - ANEFEEREET
following significant transactions with related parties (EL s TRAME SRR EmAR
during the year, some of which are also deemed to Bl TR #5148 7 A8 A ) 5T 2 BA
be connected parties pursuant to the Listing Rules: TEARS
2014 2013
—E-mF —EF—=
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
izt FETT FET
Interest paid to iMerchant’s Asia B 17 iMerchant’s Asia
Limited (“iMerchant”) Limited ([iMerchant])
Z B (i) 2,444 2,452
Interest paid on amounts due to ESRH([15%4E |) 78
Yeung Ka Sing, Carson ZERFLE
(“Mr. Yeung”) (i) 4,867 7,795
Advertising expenses paid B ARSI AR A A
to Sing Pao Newspaper (IacmERT]) 2
Company Limited EBERE
(“Sing Pao Newspaper”) (iii) — 820
Consultancy fees paid to BEHEER AR
Asia Rays Limited ([T ZEME
(“Asia Rays”) (iv) 6,124 5,920
Rental expenses paid to ENtBEzHeHAS
Asia Rays (v) 441 730
Operating cost paid to 21 Birmingham City
Birmingham City Ladies Ladies Football Club
Football Club Limited Limited ([BC Ladies FC)
(“BC Ladies FC") A ¥N (vi) 1,427 453
Commission paid to SPLUX 21 SPLUX Company
Company Limited Limited 2 {f& (Vii) 1,900 —
Rental expenses for motor RFBBEREE 2 ABEE N
vehicle with cross-border FEMERAR 2SR
license plate paid to Life
Profit Asia Limited (viii) 767 —

BIRMINGHAM INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED {HBAE IRk IZR A R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE=ZLF—IFNA=1HILFE

48. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (Continued)

Notes:

0)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The interest rate on the loan from iMerchant
was based on the terms of the agreement
entered into among the parties. iMerchant, a
subsidiary of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited
(“Chinese Energy”). Yau Yan Min, Raymond, a
former independent non-executive director of
the Company and Chan Wai Keung, a former
non-executive director of the Company are both
executive directors of Chinese Energy.

The interest rate on the amounts due to Mr. Yeung
was based on terms agreed among the parties.

The directors of the Company considered Sing Pao
Media, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
but trading of its shares have been suspended
since 28 April 2005, and its subsidiary, Sing Pao
Newspaper (together referred to as the “Sing Pao
Group”) are related companies of the Group as Mr.
Yeung, a substantial shareholder of the Company
is also the substantial shareholder of the Sing
Pao Group. Sing Pao Newspaper is an indirect
subsidiary of Sing Pao Media.

Advertising expenses was based on terms agreed
between the parties.

Peter Pannu, an executive director, the chief
executive officer and the managing director of
the Company has beneficial interests in Asia
Rays. On 22 September 2009, the Group entered
into a consultancy agreement with Asia Rays for
the provision of consultancy services to Group
on a monthly fee of HK$310,000 tax-free for a
term of five years commencing from 1 October
2009 and expiring on 30 September 2014. The
consultancy was amended to GBP65,000 per
month commencing from 1 July 2011 as per the
amendment letter dated 28 July 2011. On 28
December 2011, the Group entered into a deed
of variation with Asia Rays for the provision of
consultancy services to the Group at a monthly
fee of HK$400,000 per month commencing
from 1 January 2012. Details of the terms
of the consultancy agreement are set in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 April
2013.

)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

48. BEFIRFEBEERZ &)

(&
Hrat -

K & iMerchant 2 & X F)
RIYRETRFETS 2 s
1§ X 5 ° iMerchant &
HEBERRERERAQA
(TZERRDZ2HBA
Al o ANARLZ BB IEH
TEEBEAREARTZ
RIFERITERRIER T A
EGRRZWTES -

FE 15 55 £ FIRZ A K Th
AT R 73 15 € 2 R R i

=

TE °

ARARIEERRKRE
B(—RRB R LTz
AR EERRONEB =
ZTHFMOA=+N\BE
EEE) REKBE AR
B ¥R ¥ TI) (4% 78 A TRk 38
SEDDAKEZ B
AR RERARAZE
IR S LT AR
B2 EZRR o KRBT
REGREE 2 BERBA
= =

[E & B S TYIRRT 075 3 5E
ZNGREEE -

RARZHITES ~ 11K
48 3 5k E 1B 4532 Peter
Pannul X EF S Eas
R ZTTNEFENA
Z+ZH - AEBENRE
RIS R - ARE A
310,000/ Tt 2 & A(&
i) A1 7 5% [ 42 14 68 S AR
% AHRT BT
hWE+A—BRBE=
T—MENLA=+THE
me RIEABA=T ——
FE+ A=+ N\BZEFTH
o oH—ZT——F+tA—
Aps - BB AS
H 65000 & A =%
—F+=-A=+NHB -
ANEBEANEFT BT R
B UAR-—ZT——F—A
— B %S A 400,000
B2 B ARAEERE
EAMIARTS o BRI e 155K
ZHBERARARR-E
—=FA - +=A TR
pd/N (i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A% R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
HE-F-—MFAA=+HLFE

48. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

During the year ended 30 June 2014,
consultancy fees of approximately HK$4,800,000
(2013: HK$4,800,000), housing allowance of
approximately HK$800,000 and reimbursements
of tax of approximately HK$524,000 (2013:
HK$1,120,000) were paid to Asia Rays.

On 5 March 2011, Birmingham City Football
Club Plc (“BCFC”), an indirectly 96.64% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
Rental and Management Agreement (the “Rental
Agreement”) with Asia Rays, being the landlord
of an office premise in Hong Kong, for a period
of 3 years commencing from 1 March 2011 to 28
February 2014 at a monthly rent of GBP5,000.
Asia Rays is wholly owned and controlled by Mr.
Peter Pannu. Approximately HK$441,000 (2013:
HK$730,000) has been paid to Asia Rays during
the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The Rental
Agreement is expired on 28 February 2014 and has
not been renewed.

Peter Pannu, an executive director, the chief
executive officer and the managing director of the
Company has beneficial interests in BC Ladies FC.

During the year, Splux Company Limited (“Splux”),
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, directly and wholly owned by Mr.
Ma Shui Cheong (“Mr. Ma”) who is an executive
director of the Company, entered into a finder’s
agreement with the Company. Pursuant to the
finder’'s agreement, the Company pays commission
to Splux for the efforts of Mr. Ma to facilitate and
secure the provision of a loan agreement made
between U-Continent Holdings Limited and the
Company for loan to the Company. Approximately
HK$1,900,000 has been paid during the financial
year ended 30 June 2014.

Wang Li Fei, having beneficial interests in Life
Profit Asia Limited, is a domestic partner of Mr.
Yeung, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

48. BEFIRFEBRERS &)

(%)
Hifat -

=t+HILLFE  BREL
4,800,000 T(=ZF—=
£ 1 4,800,000/ JT ) *
& = % B #7800,000 %
T & iR i #1524,000
Bz T — = F:
1,120,000/8 7T ) B &
FhE -

R—E—%F=AFHA8 -
AR A E A 96.64%
2 Ki B A 7] Birmingham
City Football Club Plc
([BCFCl) B X T(AH
B—RAEWEZET)
FIMAE R EE WG
(fHEWwzE] BRE=
F HZE——F=A
—HEE-_ZT—NFE =
Bt \BE® A
& A5,000%H 85 - I
B Peter Pannust £ &
BHEARES - BHEZ
T—mENA=1HIE
FBRFEE BNXEY
441,000 (=T — =
£ : 730,000 JT ) ° #%
HEWHENR T —MNE
—A-t+tNBEREAXB
KEBEL -
RABZHITES « 1T
48 3 5k E F 1B 4538 Peter
PannuA BC Ladies FC
P EmERE o

RAFEERN - AARRA
BEEEmEaLEE(F%
ENEERFZILART
Splux Company Limited
(I'Splux]) (FA & 7 == fit
B 2 BIRA A EARD
RIS R 7% © REBH
N ARREEE
1 3 I {2 B U-Continent
Holdings Limited 22
AR ARMEEMEI L2 8
EmEZ GXAEZS
TR Splux Z A€ - &
E_T-—OFERA=+
HIEFMBEE  BERE
1,900,000/8 7T ©

RARZEBREIGILE
2 REfH#1EWang Li Fei
A& FIZEMN A R A A %

EatEas o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A% R R MY A

For the year ended 30 June 2014
PIENA=1HIEFE

HE-—ZF

48. RELATED PARTY AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

49.

(b)

(c)

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
consultancy fee paid to Asia Rays Limited under
note (iv) and Rental expenses paid to Asia
Rays under note (v) above constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided on pages 6 to 7 of the
annual report.

Key management compensation

The key management personnel of the Group
comprises the directors of the Company only.
Details of compensation of directors are included in
Note 16.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

On 31 July 2014, Deluxe Crystal Limited, the
subscriber, a company owned as to 50% by Cheung
Shing (the chairman and executive Director) and
50% by Ma Shui Cheong (the vice-chairman and
executive Director), and the Company entered into
a subscription agreement in respect of the issue
of convertible bonds in an aggregate amount of
principal of HK$120,000,000 carrying an interest of
7.5% per annum with exercise price of HK$0.10 per
each conversion share due in 2016. Details of the
convertible bonds are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 July 2014.

Transfers of players’ registration subsequent to 30
June 2014 resulted in a net amount of approximately
GBP1,252,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,158,000) receivable to BCP.

48. BEFIRFEBEERZ &)

(b)

()

SHEERSERZ EHRAE
Rt

o EH AR A F14AZ TR
BB LEXHE(V)RETX
RFXREZERE - URMHE
WETNTFREZEEH
XZBBEANL R SEKER

FHHAEWAERE 2B
BEETHODHERERFET
Ec

TEEEEME
NREEFEEEEXKEERR
RRABES - EEWE 25118
ERIFE16 ©

49. IFREHEREE

(a)

RZZETE—WOFLA=+—
H ' R B ADeluxe Crystal
Limited (7% 5& B (& fE 3R B 1T
E2)HA50% &EEE (R
ERFENTESR)EFL50% 2
AR)ERARRBEITASHE
%8 120,000,000 7 7T 2 A 2 %
BEHFT L REH®E - BFEH
EK75%FTE - (TEERER
HBEHB010B T RZF
—INFE|E - ATARESFZF
BERAARBHA=—Z—N
FEHA=+—RHZAM-

—T-mFENA=1TH%  #
EIR B A BCP A2k fE Uk
FRIBFFE 1,252,000 H 45 (48
Z£10 416,158,000 7T ) ©
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBERE

For the For the For the For the For the
year year year 12 months 15 months
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 31 March
~HA=1+H ~NA=1H ~NA=1H ~A=+H =ZA=t+—H
EFE HEE IHFE IE+=1EA IF+H@EA
Result £ 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-QNE —E-=F —E-——-F ZE——F ZZ-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T FET FET FET
Turnover e 253,227 294,497 489,887 781,366 581,596
(Loss) profit before Bt A0 (B8 )i Al
taxation (135,233) (125,532) 143,688 (784,602) (431,861)
Income tax (expense)  FT{3#(F%)E®
credit (21,032) 4,944 — 153,783 40,757
(Loss) profit before ReEtIEiE s
non-controlling (E18)mAl
interests (156,265) (120,588) 143,688 (630,819) (391,104)
Attributable to: JEfh :
Owners of the ZN/NEIET 2PN
company (153,114) (118,760) 136,911 (612,054) (387,684)
Non-controlling FEEfR i
interests (3,151) (1,828) 6,777 (18,765) (3,420)
(156,265) (120,588) 143,688 (630,819) (391,104)
At 30 June
RAHB=1+H
Assets and liabilities BEHE 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE —Z—= —E-f —ZT——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET & FET FET T
Total assets BEHRE 528,892 464,961 579,136 627,330 1,243,235
Total liabilities BiERTE (363,712) (564,230) (557,502) (749,695) (903,630)
Shareholder’s fund BRES 165,180 (99,269) 21,634 (122,365) 339,605
Total equity [Eh T AARE
attributable to:
Owners of the VN/NGIETFEDN
company 161,448 (99,529) 19,535 (117,677) 324,914
Non-controlling FEE R e
interests 3,732 260 2,099 (4,688) 14,691
165,180 (99,269) 21,634 (122,365) 339,605
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